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BE | T REMEMBERED t hat on Wednesday,
January 18, 2023, 1:30 p.m, the follow ng proceedi ngs were
hel d before Ann Marie Allison, Certified Court Reporter
residing in Pierce County, Washi ngton.

(Al parties present via Teans)

***  MEETI NG CALLED TO ORDER 1:30 p.m  ***

CHAIR DREW (Good afternoon. This is
Kat hl een Drew, chair of the Energy Facility Site Eval uation
Counsel, bringing our neeting to order.
W have had sone feedback -- (No audio.)
SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Start from the begi nning,
Chair Drew. For some reason it got nuted from our sides.
CHAIR DREW Certainly.
SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Apol ogi es.
CHAIR DREW (Good afternoon, this is Kathleen
Drew, chair of the Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council,
calling to order our January nonthly neeting.
Al of those of you who have m crophones out there
t hat may be open, please check your m crophones -- we're
getting sone feedback in the room-- and nake sure that they
are off.
Ms. Grantham w |l you please call the roll?

SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Certainly.
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Department of Conmerce.

SPEAKER KELLY: Kate Kelly present.
SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Departnent of Ecol ogy.
SPEAKER LEVITT: Eli Levitt present.
SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Departnent of Fish and

Wldlife.

SPEAKER LI VI NGSTON: M ke Livingston present.
SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Departnent of Natural

Resour ces.

SPEAKER YOUNG Lenny Young present.
SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Uilities and

Transportation Conm ssi on.

SPEAKER BREWSTER: St acey Brewster present.
SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Local governnent and

optional state agencies for the Horse Heaven Project,

Departnment of Agriculture.

SPEAKER SANDI SON:  Der ek Sandi son present.
SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Benton County, Ed Brost.

SPEAKER BROST: |'m here.

SPEAKER GRANTHAM  For the Badger Mountain

Project, Douglas County.

(No response)

SPEAKER GRANTHAM  For the Waut oma Sol ar

Project for Benton County, Dave Sharnp.

(No response)
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SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Washi ngton State

Departnment of Transportation.
(No response)

SPEAKER GRANTHAM  The Assi stant Attorney
Cener al .

SPEAKER THOWPSON: This is John Thonpson,
Assi stant Attorney General.

SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Thank you.

Adm ni strative | aw judges, Adam Torem

JUDGE TOREM This is Judge Torem |'m here.

SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Laura Bradl ey.

JUDGE BRADLEY: This is Judge Bradley; |I'm
here. Also, |'ve heard fromJudge CGerard that he's having
difficulty joining the neeting, so he may not be wth us
yet.

JUDGE GERARD: |I'min now. Thank you.

SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Perfect. Thank you. Dan
Cerard is present. Thank you.

For EFSEC staff, Sonia Bunpus.
(No response)

SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Any Haf keneyer .

SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER: Any Haf keneyer present.

SPEAKER CGRANTHAM  Any Mbon.

SPEAKER MOON:  Any Mbon present.

SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Patty Betts.

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
O LITIGATION SERVICES




© 00 N o o B~ W N P

N N D N NN P P P PP PP PR
g A W N P O © 0 N O U0 M W N P+ O

EFSEC 2023 Monthly Council Meetings

Energy Facility Site Evaulation Council, Monthly Council Meeting - January 18, 2023

(No response)
SPEAKER CGRANTHAM St ew Hender son.

(No response)
SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Joan Owens.
SPEAKER J. OWNENS: Present.
SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Dave Wal ker.
SPEAKER WALKER: Dave Wl ker present.
SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Sonya Skavl and.
SPEAKER SKAVLAND: Sonya Skavl and present.
SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Li sa Masengal e.
SPEAKER MASENGALE: Lisa Masengal e present.
SPEAKER CGRANTHAM  Sara Randol ph.
SPEAKER RANDOLPH: Sara Randol ph present.
SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Sean G eene.

(No response)
SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Lance Caput o.
SPEAKER CAPUTQO  Lance Caputo present.
SPEAKER GRANTHAM  John Bar nes.
SPEAKER BARNES: John Barnes present.
SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Osta Davi s.
SPEAKER DAVIS. Osta Davis --
SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Joanne Snar ski .
SPEAKER SNARSKI :  Present.
SPEAKER CGRANTHAM  For the operati onal

updates, Kittitas Valley Wnd Project.
253.627.6401 B:AL.T.GAT.ON S schedule@balitigation.com
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SPEAKER MELBARDI S: Eric Mel bardis present.

SPEAKER GRANTHAM W I d Horse W nd Power
Proj ect .

SPEAKER GALBRAI TH:  Jennifer Gl braith
present .

SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Grays Harbor Energy
Center.

SPEAKER SHERIN.  Chris Sherin present.

SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Chehal is Generati on
Facility.

SPEAKER ADAMS: M ke Adans present.

SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Col unbi a CGenerati ng
St ati on.

SPEAKER SCHM DT:  Marshall Schm dt present.

SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Col unbi a Sol ar.

SPEAKER HURD: Ownen Hurd present.

SPEAKER GRANTHAM  And do we have soneone
here for the counsel for the environnment?

(No response)

Hearing none, Chair, there is a quorumfor the
regul ar counsel, the Horse Heaven counsel and the \Wautona
counsel . Thank you.

SPEAKER BREWSTER: This is Stacey Brewster.
| nmove that we approve the Novenber nonthly nmeeting m nutes.
UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER:  Second.
253.627.6401 B:AL.T.GAT.ON S schedule@balitigation.com
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SPEAKER KELLY: Kate Kelly, second.

(No audi o)
CHAIR DREW |'msorry. |'Il start again.
| have two changes to nake. The first one is on
page 8, line 21. The word "professional" should be
“facility," and on page 52, line 3, before the word "walk, "
it should say "I will."

Are there any other changes for the Novenber
mont hly nmeeting m nutes?
SPEAKER KELLY: Chair Drew, this is Kate
Kelly. Can you hear ne?
CHAIR DREW Yes. (o ahead.
SPEAKER KELLY: Okay. We're just having a
little trouble hearing you sonetines.
| have two changes on page 21 for sone reason.
The top line, Line No. 1, "effective" should be "executive."
CHAI R DREW Thank vyou.
SPEAKER KELLY: Line 14, the word "quart”
shoul d be "short."
CHAI R DREW  Thank you.
SPEAKER KELLY: You're wel cone.
CHAIR DREW Are there any other changes for
the monthly meeting m nutes?
Hearing none, all those in favor of the Novenber

nonthly neeting m nutes as anmended, please say "Aye."

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
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(Aye.)
CHAI R DREW  Qpposed?

The m nutes are anended.

|'mgoing to take a step backwards and ask for
approval of adopting the agenda for today's neeting. |Is
there a notion to approve the agenda for today's neeting?

SPEAKER YOUNG. Lenny Young, SO nove.
CHAI R DREW  Thank you.
SPEAKER BREWSTER: Stacey Brewster, second.
CHAI R DREW  Thank you. Al those in favor
of approving the agenda for today, please say "Aye."
(Aye.)

Al |l those opposed?

The agenda is approved.

Ckay. Now noving on to the second set of m nutes,
as | get there on ny screen. 1s there a notion to approve
the mnutes for the Novenber 29th special neeting?

SPEAKER KELLY: Kate Kelly, nove to approve
t he m nutes.

CHAIR DREW Thank you. Second?

SPEAKER LEVITT: Eli Levitt, second.

CHAIR DREW Are there any changes to that
set of mnutes?

Heari ng none, all those in favor of approving the

mnutes for the Septenber -- I'msorry -- Novenber 29th

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
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speci al neeting please say "Aye."
(Aye.)
CHAI R DREW  Qpposed?
The m nutes are approved.
Ckay. Moving on in our agenda to the facility
updates. M. Ml bardis wth Kittitas Valley Wnd Project,
pl ease go ahead.

SPEAKER MELBARDI S: Good afternoon, Chair

Drew, EFSEC council and staff. For the record, this is Eric

Mel bardis. | think you asked us to spell that this tine.
ME-L --

CHAIR DREW M. Mel bardis, we have you on
the list that we will send to the court reporter, so yes.

SPEAKER MELBARDI S: (Okay. So yes, | amwth
EDP Renewables for the Kittitas Valley Wnd Power Project,
and | have nothing non-routine to report for the period.

CHAI R DREW Thank vyou.

Moving on to WIld Horse Wnd Power Facility,
Ms. Gal braith.

SPEAKER GALBRAI TH:  Thank you, Chair Drew,
counci | nenbers and staff. This is Jennifer Galbraith with
Puget Sound Energy, representing the Wld Horse Wnd
Facility, and | have nothing non-routine to report for the
nmont h of Novenber or Decenber.

CHAI R DREW Thank you.

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
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Grays Harbor Energy Facility, M. Sherin.
SPEAKER SHERI N0  Good afternoon, Chaif Dr ew,
ant
council menbers, staff. This is Chris Sherin, the Eand

manager at Gays Harbor Energy Center.

For the nonth of Novenber, | have no non-routine
were
items to report. | will note though that we werent (ph.)

limted to one-by-one operation for two weeks, due to
transm ssion |ine maintenance on the Pauf?g]ynpiaféatsop sub
or transm ssion TEi;.

In the nonth of Novenber, | have no non-routine
itens to report.

CHAI R DREW Thank you.

For Chehalis CGeneration Facility.

SPEAKER ADAMS: Yeah. (Good afternoon, Chair
Drew, EFSEC council and staff. This is M ke Adans, plant
manager at the Chehalis Generation Facility. For the nonth
of Novenber, | have no non-routine itenms to report.

CHAI R DREW Thank you.

Col unbi a Generating Station.

SPEAKER SCHM DT: Good afternoon, Chair Drew,
counci | nenbers and staff. For the record, this is Marshall
Schm dt reporting for Col unbia Generating Station.

For the nonth of Novenber, | only have one update,

and that is on the 17th, Energy Northwest received approval

from EFSEC for the Colunbia Generating Station annual air

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
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em ssion source registration, and that's for 2020 and 2021.

For Decenber, the only item| have to update is
that on the 1st of the nonth, Energy Northwest received the
I nspection report for our 2022 Col unbia Generating Station
synthetic mnor air inspection that was conducted back in
October. There were no issues or findings identified in
that letter.

That is all that | have to update.

CHAI R DREW  Thank you.

For the Colunbia Solar Projects, M. Hurd.

SPEAKER HURD: Good afternoon, Chair Drew,
counci | nenbers and EFSEC staff. This is Oaen Hurd
reporting for the Colunbia Solar Projects. For the nonth of
Novenber, total generation of 385 negawatt hours for the
Penst enon Project, 356 negawatt hours for the Camas Project
and on the Urtica Project for troubl eshooting inverters and
substantial conpletion as expected in |ate January.

Thank you.
CHAI R DREW Thank vyou.
Yes?

SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER: Sorry, Chair Drew. If |
could, | wanted to step back just a bit. W do have a line
itemon the agenda for an update for the counsel on the
Col unbi a Generating Station NPDES permt provided by
Ms. Moon.

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
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CHAIR DREW And that was, for the record,
Ms. Haf keneyer.

And | was follow ng the sheets in ny packet and
not the agenda, so ny apol ogies there.

Ms. Moon, this is the NPDES permt update. Go
ahead, Ms. Mbon.

SPEAKER MOON:  Thank you.

Good afternoon Council Chair Drew and counci l
menbers. For the record, this is Anry Mon, EFSEC staff
menber providing an update on the National Poll utant
Di scharge Elimnation System or NPDES permt, at the
Col unbi a Generating Station

The last tine there was action taken by the
council on the NPDES permt was in 2019, and the council
menbers have changed quite a bit since then. And | want to
provi de you and the public with a brief sunmary of the NPDES
permt and permt program

Energy Northwest operates a nucl ear-fuel ed steam
el ectric power generation plant known as the Col unbia
Cenerating Station, that discharges to the Col unbia River.
EFSEC regul ates the discharge to the Col unbia River under
t he NPDES permit program

This regulatory authority warrants a brief
expl anation, beginning with the Cean Water Act. The
federal Clean Water Act, first enacted in 1972, established

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
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wat er quality goals for the navigable surface waters of the
United States. One nmechani smfor achieving the goals of the
Cl ean Water Act is the NPDES, adm nistered by the Federal
Envi ronnental Protection Agency or EPA

The EPA authorized the State of Washington to
manage the NPDES permt programin our state. The
Washi ngton State Legislature accepted the del egati on and
assi gned the power and duty for conducting NPDES permtting
and enforcenent to EFSEC for facilities under EFSEC
authority.

EFSEC worked wi th t he Washi ngt on Departnent of
Ecol ogy and issued the current NPDES permt on
Septenber 30th of 2014. This permt was nodified tw ce, on
February 8th of 2016 and again on March 19th of 2019.

Al t hough the NPDES was issued with an
Cct ober 31st, 2019, expiration date, EFSEC adm nistratively
extended the permt on Septenber 13th, 2019, after accepting
t he NPDES renewal application on August 6th, 2019, in
accordance with the Washington State Adm nistrative
Procedure Act, which is the Revised Code of WAshi ngton
34.05.422(3) and the Washi ngton Adm nistrative Code
463-76-061(4).

Today | want to | et you know t hat EFSEC has been
wor ki ng wi th Ecol ogy on the new NPDES permt and expects to

have the draft permt and fact sheet ready for presentation

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
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to the council in February.
Does the council have any questions?

CHAIR DREW Are there any questions from
counci | nenbers?

No. Thank you.
Next itemin the next order on our agenda is Horse
Heaven Wnd Farm Ms. Moon.

SPEAKER MOON: Thank you, Council, Chair Drew
and council nenbers. Again, for the record, this is Any
Moon, EFSEC staff nmenber, providing a draft environnental
I npact statenent or draft EI'S update on the Horse Heaven
W nd Project.

The draft EI'S was issued Decenber 19th, 2022, for
a 45-day comment period ending February 1st of 2023. Copies
of the draft EIS are posted for public review on the EFSEC
public website, and el ectronic copies were distributed to
public libraries near the Horse Heaven Wnd Project -- or
proposed project area, as well as to the Washington State
Library in Qynpia. Public comments nmay be submtted to the
EFSEC comment dat abase or by US nail to the EFSEC nailing
addr ess.

After the comment period closes, EFSEC w Il review
the comments received to determne if additional information
gat hering and anal ysis should be done to inprove the

environnmental analysis for the final EIS

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
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Does the council have any questions?

CHAIR DREW Any questions from counci l
menber s?

SPEAKER BREWSTER:  Just a question of how
| ong you expect it to take to go through the coments.

SPEAKER MOON: Since we're still in the
comrent period and we don't know how many comrents or the
content of those comments, that's hard to answer.

We do have a contractor that will be working on
sorting the comments and tabul ating and figuring out what
topi cs we have and whet her or not additi onal
I nformati on-gathering will need to be done and what
addi tional analysis wll have to occur.

Does that answer your question it's a vague
answer, but...(pause).

SPEAKER BREWSTER: | expect so.
SPEAKER MOON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR DREW Any ot her questions?

Ckay. Thank you.

Moving on to the Goose Prairie Sol ar Project,
proj ect updates. M. Randol ph.

SPEAKER RANDCLPH. Good afternoon, Chair
Drew, council nenbers and staff. For the record, this is
Sara Randol ph, the site specialist for the Goose Prairie

Facility.

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
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EFSEC staff received a draft of the initial site
restoration plan, or ISRP, fromthe certificate hol der,
which is available to you in your packet. Staff have
reviewed the draft in consultation wth our independent
contractor and our attorney general and determ ned that the
plan conplies with the facility site certification
agreenent, or SCA, an agreenent and regul ation, excuse ne,
wi th Washi ngton Adm ni strative Code or WAC 463-72.

The ISRP is required to be approved by the
council, per WAC 463-72-030. At this tine, staff are
recomrendi ng that the council vote to approve the | SRP as
provi ded.

EFSEC staff received two comments in the | SRP.
Nei t her commrent warranted a change in the draft | SRP as we
received it.

Are there any questions?

CHAIR DREW Are there any questions for
staff?

Hearing none, | would ask the council: Seeing and
having a chance to reviewthe ISRP or initial site
restoration plan, is there a notion to approve that plan?

SPEAKER YOUNG Lenny Young, SO nove.
CHAI R DREW Thank you.
Second?

SPEAKER KELLY: Kate Kelly, second.

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
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CHAI R DREW Thank you.
Are there any comments?
The plan seens to ne to be in good order and
certainly covers the -- what is required both in our rules

and in the site certification agreenent, so | comend it to
you.

All those in favor of approving Goose Prairie
Solar Initial Site Restoration Plan, please say "Aye."

(Aye.)
CHAIR DREW Al those opposed?
The plan is approved. Thank you.
Badger Muntain Project update. M. Hafkeneyer.
SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER: Thank you, Chair Drew.
Good afternoon, council.

Staff have been working with our contractor in the
initial stages of drafting the environnmental inpact
statement. On Decenber 27th, EFSEC staff sent a second data
request to the applicant in support of the draft EIS. Staff
have al so received additional studies fromthe applicant as
coordi nated with EFSEC staff and contracted agenci es of
experti se.

Are there any questions?

CHAIR DREW Are there -- so this is the
preparation of the draft EIS phase that we are in now for

Badger Mountain. Correct?

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
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SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER: Correct. EFSEC staff
are working with our contractor to draft the sections of the
EIS, which will then be conpiled for issuance later this
year.

CHAI R DREW  Thank you.

Any ot her questions? Gkay. Thank you.

Whistling Ridge. M. Hafkeneyer.

SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER: Thank you, Chair Drew.
Again, this is Any Hafkeneyer, for the record.

EFSEC staff are waiting for the gf{}ificaie hol der
to submt the remaining materials for the ECA anendnment
request. There are no further updates at this tine.

CHAIR DREW On to the next project, H gh Top
and Gstrea. Ms. Hafkeneyer.

SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER: Thank you. 1'd like to
start by thanking the council for their attendance at the
conditional use criteria neeting | ast Wednesday. At that
nmeeting there were four speakers. EFSEC al so received four
witten comments, one of which was received verbally, as
wel |, and was one of the four commenters who spoke.

These comments i ncluded recommendations on fire
risk mtigation, recommendation on use of |ocal |abor, and
concerns about use of agricultural |and and environnental
I npacts and i nput on the EFSEC revi ew process for this

proj ect .
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I'd like to take a nonment to review the tineline
of this project to date, highlighting the opportunities that
we have had so far for public comment.

On April 7th, EFSEC received the application for
site certificationoéAéE§cas well as the letter requesting
expedi ted process.

On June 1st, EFSEC held the initial public
informational neeting to receive public comment, followed by
the | and use consi stency hearing to receive testinmony from
the public. Both of these neetings were held virtually.

On July 19th, at the regularly schedul ed council
nmeeting, the council reviewed and approved an extension of
t he expedited process and determ nati on by ten weeks.

On Cctober 18th, the council voted to approve
Order 884 determning the proposal to be consistent with
| ocal | and use ordinances in place at the tinme of
application. Public comment was taken during the neeting on
this council action.

On Cctober 1st, EFSEC issued a SEPA threshold
determnation of mtigated determnation of
non-si gni fi cance, or MDNS, followed by a 14-day public
comment peri od.

On Cctober 28, EFSEC issued the revised MDNS.

On Novenber 2nd, the council went on a site tour

and viewed the Hi gh Top and Ostrea sites froma nearby

253.627.6401 BA schedule @balitigation.com
O LITIGATION SERVICES

Page 20



agrantha463
Cross-Out

agrantha463
Typewritten Text
or ASC


© 00 N oo o B~ O wWw NP

N N N N NN P B P PR PR PR
O N W N P O © 0 N O O M W N B O

EFSEC 2023 Monthly Council Meetings

Energy Facility Site Evaulation Council, Monthly Council Meeting - January 18, 2023 Page 21

vantage point at which the public was wel cone to attend.

Wth the land use consistency determ nati on nade
by Order 884 and the revised MDNS i ssued on Cct ober 28t h,

t he council voted to approve the applicant's expedited
request by Order 885 on Novenber 15th. Council action was
open for public comment ahead of the Novenber counci
nmeet i ng.

On Novenber 29th, the council reviewed and
approved the request to extend the tinmeline for the
recommendation to February 22nd. This action was open for
public coment ahead of the council neeting.

And then finally, |ast week, EFSEC held a
conditional use criteria neeting to receive public coment
on conditions related to the conditional use criteria as
identified in the Yaki ma County Code that could then be
included in a site certification agreenent draft.

Are there any questions fromthe council on the
project activity to date?

CHAIR DREW Are there any questions about
the tineline and the actions the council has taken or public
comment opportunities? Go ahead.

AMI HAFKEMEYE

UNFDENTIELED - SPEAKER:  Thank you.

I n consideration of our review of the application,
the issued MDNS, the determ nation of |and use consistency

and the granting of expedited process, staff would like to
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recommrend that the council direct staff to prepare an order
wth the reconmendati on of approval, a draft site
certification agreenent and associ ated docunents to be
reviewed and voted on at the February 15th council neeting.
CHAIR DREW Thank you. Are there any
questions from council nenbers?
Is there a notion to direct the staff to draft an

order recomendi ng approval of the project for the February

nmeeti ng?

SPEAKER LEVITT: Eli Levitt, notion to direct
the staff.

CHAIR DREW  Second?

SPEAKER BREWSTER  Stacey Brewster, second.

CHAI R DREW Thank you.

Are there any questions or conments on this

noti on?

A ot of work has gone into review ng the
application, working with agenci es who have had concerns on
the project, that have been actually worked through in terns
of the mtigation. That has -- is all part of our package
as we go forward, and | comrend this project to you and
encourage a yes vote.

Il will ask for a roll call vote.

Cerk, will you call -- Ms. Gantham wll you
call the roll for the EFSEC council, which is also the H gh
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Top and Gstrea council.
SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Yes. No problem
Chair Drew.
CHAI R DREW  Aye.
SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Depart nent of Commerce,

Kate Kelly.

SPEAKER KELLY: Aye.

SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Departnent of Fish and
Wldlife.

SPEAKER LI VI NGSTON:  Aye.

SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Departnent of Ecol ogy, Eli
Levitt.

SPEAKER LEVI TT: Aye.

SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Utilities and
Transportation Conm ssion, Stacey Brewster.

SPEAKER BREWSTER:  Aye.

SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Departnment of Nat ural
Resour ces, Lenny Young.

SPEAKER YOUNG  Aye.

CHAIR DREW The notion is approved.

| will point out to the public that the order will

be drafted before the next council neeting, and you wl|
have tinme to send in your comments to us about that draft
order. So that's the next step. W haven't finalized the

order, so the opportunity wll be to conmment on the proposed
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order before the next neeting. Thank you all.

Moving on to the next itemon our agenda, which is
t he WAautoma Sol ar Project update, M. Caputo.

SPEAKER CAPUTG.  Thank you, Chair Drew and
council nenbers. For the record, nmy name is Lance Caputo.
|'mthe EFSEC staff assigned to the Wautonma Project.

The state briefly -- we are in the stage of the
process where we thoroughly review the application and then
request suppl enental dat a.

In Cctober of 2022, EFSEC sent the applicant a
request for additional information. W received the
applicant's response to Data Request No. 1 in md Novenber.

On the 27th of Decenber, a second request for
addi tional information was sent. However, due to the
hol i day season, the applicant requested a 45-day period to
respond. We anticipate a reply by 15th of January 2023, and
in the meantime, we are continuing to work with the
applicant and our contractors on this project.

CHAI R DREW Thank vyou.

So those data requests are to help with the staff
conpletion of the determnation of significance for the
project. |Is that correct?

SPEAKER CAPUTO  Correct. They fill in
m ssing gaps in the application so that we can nake a proper

SEPA det erm nati on.
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CHAI R DREW Thank you.

So the next step will be the SEPA determ nati on,
whi ch is nmade by Sonia Bunpus, our EFSEC director, and then
fromthere that information will conme back to the council

SPEAKER CAPUTQO  Correct.
CHAI R DREW  Thank you.

Any questions? And we also had a site visit of
Vautoma as well, so | think that's hel pful for us as we
consi der that project.

Moving on to Hop Hill Solar, this is a new
application that has just recently come to EFSEC

Ms. Haf keneyer.

SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER: Thank you. For the
record, this is Anry Haf kenmeyer.

On Decenber 22nd, EFSEC staff received the
application for the proposed Hop Hill Solar Facility. The
applicant is here today to give a brief introduction to the
project, nore detail on which will be provided at the public
i nformational neeting.

Staff are currently working to schedule this
nmeeting and will update the council and the public as
detail s becone avail abl e.

Are there any questions?

CHAI R DREW Any questions?

Go ahead.
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SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER: Hearing none, | wll
hand the floor over to the applicant to introduce thensel ves
to the council.

SPEAKER TYSON: Thank you, Chair Drew,
counci | nenbers and staff. So excited to cone here and talk
alittle bit about the Hop H Il Project, but real quickly,
just as a matter of introductions, ny nane's Chris
W ssel -Tyson. | |ead devel opnent here for BrightN ght in
the Pacific Northwest. |'mbased just north of Seattle, and
"Il let Ron introduce hinself.

CHAIR DREW If you can spell your name
for --

SPEAKER TYSON:  Sorry about that.

CHAI R DREW -- the court reporter.

SPEAKER TYSONN. CHRI-ST-OP-HE-R And |
have a hyphenated | ast name, WI-S-S-E-L dash T-Y-S-ON

CHAI R DREW Thank vyou.

SPEAKER KI ECANA:  And |I'm Ron Ki ecana,
K-1-E-CGA-NA |I'mthe chief devel opnent officer wth
Bri ght Nl ght Power. And thank you, Chair Drew and EFSEC
staff for the opportunity to introduce BrightN ght and the
Hop Hi Il Project today.

SPEAKER TYSON: We'll nove quickly to the
next slide and just a little background behind who we are

and the conpany Bright N ght.
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W' re an i ndependent power producer. 1'd say
young in current formation, we were fornmed in 2018, but 1'd
say old in pedigree and experience anongst the team W are
the next iteration of a conpany that was started by Martin
Her mann, called 8m nutenergy. 8mnute, fromaround 2010 to
2018, was a large private solar developer in the United
States and really changed the way we | ooked at | arge
utility-scale solar projects. He built projects in Southern
California and Nevada and Arizona that set price records at
the tine and really showed that |arge solar projects can be
conpetitive with fossil fuel projects.

But around 2017-2018, he started to cone to the
realization that if we're going to truly decarboni ze the
grid, we're going to have to nove fromas avail able
renewabl e technol ogy, when wi nd blows or when it's sunny or
when the hydro's running with a large runoff in the spring,
to sonething that's nore dispatchable, like a traditiona
power plant. And that's why he formed BrightN ght, and we
are a purpose-built teamfor that goal.

"1l get alittle bit into that next slide, but
just real quick, we have a US portfolio of around 21
gigawatts, two gigawatts in the Asia Pacific. W have two
financial partners, CPPIB, the Canadi an pension fund, is a
partner in all of our western projects, and we al so have

G P, Aobal Infrastructure Partners, which is one of the
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| argest infrastructure funds in the world, and they support
our US portfolio.

One point of clarification, we are an IDP. W
intend to develop, build and own these projects for up to 40
to 50 years. W are not trying to sell the project before
or right after construction. That's not how we're built.

So | think it does change, a little bit, how we do business
as a conpany. Stakehol ders, nei ghbor relationships, just

t he design of the plants and thinking about our rate payers
and custoners, us, as power buyers, is very inportant to us
when we have that kind of -- you want to say sonething?

| was just going to check on the next part here.
And just noving along, we're now a team of about 110 people,
W th operations here in the US, as well as over in Asia
Pacific. 85 people are located here in the US, and we have
a strong teamhere in the Northwest. They're |ocated here;
six people reside here in the Northwest. W're a big
believer in being very close to the custoners and to the
mar kets which we aspire to be a part of in the future.

If we can nove on to the next slide here, | just
want to touch on -- this is sonething that is very different
and is part of BrightNight. And this is a proprietary
software platformthat we have devel oped here at
Bright Night, and this supports our focus on structuring

cl ean power products for our custoner.
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And so as Chris nentioned, there is a difference
bet ween cl ean energy and cl ean power. You're going to get
cl ean energy when the sun is shining, wind is blowng. W
focus on clean power and providing that power when the
custoner really values it and needs it nost. And it can
nost be beneficial froman operations perspective for the
custoner and for the transm ssion system

So our Power Al pha platform very quickly, is able
to very quickly anal yze i mense anounts of data across
intermttent resources and identify where the gaps are. So
we | ook for opportunities to conbine intermttent resources
to provide structured, nore val uable clean power products to
cust oners.

Sonetines this does involve using energy storage.
O her tinmes it may involve just layering in nore
intermttent energy, such as wind, solar, possibly even
hydro. So again, very powerful tool core to BrightN ght and
a big part of what we do here as a teamhere in the US.

SPEAKER TYSON: Two slides, I'Il talk a

little bit about the Hop H Il Energy Project. This is a PVS
500- negawatt project in Benton County, Washington, Central
Washi ngton, around 5,000 acres within the fence line. And
we actually have three different potential points of
I nterconnect and interconnect applications with the EPA

We have four main goals with the Hop Hi Il Project.
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One is to provide lowcost and reliable energy in an area

t hat conplinents already-existing resources. And so that's
the Colunbia R ver dans and what's really called the

Nort hwest hub, as well as other resources, such as nuclear,
to help neet grow ng needs in the region as well as the
state.

2. W wanted to avoid expensive and | engthy
infrastructure projects. |'msure you guys know, but we are
extrenmely constrained here in Washington and Oregon as wel |,
nostly around the BPA system There's just no transm ssion
left to bring a ot of new projects online to nmeet our
renewabl e goal s.

If you put, for exanple, a project maybe closer to
Spokane, Eastern Washi ngton, you can trigger upgrades on the
east and west side of Washington, as well as Portland and
Eastern Oregon. And those upgrades can take 10 to 15 years,
and it's a big inpact on everyone that's experiencing those
upgr ades.

So we | ooked across Washi ngton's BPA system and
really tried to find a | ocation where we can inject a |large
amount of renewabl e power w thout triggering those |ong
upgrades, which allows us to cone online in two to three
years and deliver to custoners and hel p neet renewabl e goal s
and not trigger all these projects across nmultiple states.

No. 3, minimzing natural resource inpacts while
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maxi m zi ng community benefits. So these projects bring a

| ot of tax revenue to comunities, but we heard, kind of,
three main concerns, and we worked with -- we've been

tal king to Benton County over two-and-a-half years. | nean,
one is visual, and the other one is inpact to productive
land, and a third is pristine habitat, inpact to its
pristine habitat.

So really tried to find a site that was a happy
medi um between all these inpacts. W wanted to avoid any
irrigated land. W also wanted to avoid those higher val ue
habi tat areas and wanted to seat the project in a |location
in which it was shielded fromthe rest of the conmunity as
much as we could. That's how we picked this site just south
of Rattlesnake Hill, and it's on | ow productivity grazing
| and.

No. 4. One thing that's very inportant to us is
co-use, and we'll talk about this in tw slides. But we
wanted to nmaintain the productive nature of the land. Even
t hough this is | ow productivity grazing land, we really
think that we can work in concert with traditional
agricultural practices.

So for this site we are doi ng sheep grazing across
the entire project, and it will probably be the |argest
project, we think, in the Pacific Northwest to pursue this

type of agrivoltaics.
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"1l talk about that. And if we can switch, go
one nore slide.

Just real quick, on alittle bit nore about the
mcrositing of the project. You guys understand, | think,
why we cane to this area. And if you |l ook on the south or
bottom of your screen there, you can see the white areas are
sol ar panels, so there's a | ot of design considerations once
we narrowed into this site. One was natural resources.

W actually talk a lot to WOFW One, about
habitat that borders, |I'd say, to the north of the site, of
actual species that they were concerned about. 1In this
case, it was the Ferrugi nous Hawk, and so we actually noved
all our panels fromthe west to the east to try to avoid the
Ferrugi nous Hawk's prey habitat in that area.

Cul ture and archaeol ogical, we did transect
surveys and we've hired, we think, very good | ocal
consul tants that understand our stakeholders and really
hel ped in that stakehol der outreach.

Water resources, there is sone water in the draws
between the sites, but we'll really be able to avoid those
I npacts through our crossings.

Vi sual inpact, which | already tal ked about a
little bit, and then topography and existing agricultural
oper ati ons.

So wth all these design considerations or
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constraints, we cane up with this layout which will be
included in our permt.

And 1'll nove to the next slide. | know we don't
have a [ ot of tine.

This is one thing | really wanted to tal k about.
| nmean, because we really think that the industry -- this is
where the industry needs to go, and it really can be a part
of agriculture. So we're really focused on agrivoltaics in
t he conpany. Qur owner, Martin, has two regenerative farns.
It's a big focus of ours, and we think this is the way we're
going to have to do business and really work in a synbiotic
relationship in the future.

There's an agricultural Oegon State professor
that said: Solar panels are farmequi pment and the sun is a
farm resource.

W like that. W think that's a good goal and
maybe where we can nove, but we do think we already
conpl enment existing traditional ag practices. And so for
this site, we're pursuing sheep grazing. And there's really
good research, locally, about the advantages of doing that.

There's a study, specifically, on sheep grazing,
same type of | andscape and | ow productivity grazing | and.
They see up to about a 300 percent inprovenent in water
conservation just by the shading. By doing that shading you

get twce the plant growth. And it's because on the eastern
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side of the Cascades here, we are water limted, not sun or
photon Iimted. And what does that equal ? Actually, about
a ten percent increase in care and capacity of sheep on the
site.

So not only does this work well wth an existing
ag practice, but actually inproves it. So we really think
it's a great nodel going forward.

We're also very excited; this was actually -- this
property was an historic sheep operation since the | andowner
originally honesteaded the | and and expanded it, they raised
sheep for years and ran themup into the nountains. There
was, |'d say, alittle bit of a crash in the wool market a
coupl e decades ago, and now trends are changi ng again and
it's starting to nmake nore sense.

So we're really excited to bring this sheep
operation back to the property. And he will actually own
and run this, soit's quite exciting.

And |astly, we want to support agrivoltaics in the
future. | nmean, this isn't just us in this project. W're
committed to really supporting the industry and maki ng sure
that we're doing business in a way that works well wth our
| ocal comunities.

So we're actually funding a research project
t hrough a local university. W'IIl announce it soon, but

it's really on the inpact of co-use on this project and
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actually nutrient transport. Wthout getting into details,
sheep like to sit under the panels, and so they do certain
things there. So a lot of nutrients is concentrated under
t hose panels, and there's a |lot of interest on how that
nutrient flows throughout the property.

That's about it. W do have a quick video, if we
do have tinme, about the project as well.

BRI GATNI GHT: | just wanted to add one nore
thing. W do have a power sale commtnent in place for 280
megawatts of the 500 negawatts that's being shown here in
the application, and that power will -- clean energy power
W Il be used for future Washington State cl ean power
requirements.

(Video being played. No audi o)

CHAIR DREW Can we pause for a mnute? [|I'm
seei ng nessages that there is not audio for those who are
not in this room

SPEAKER GRANTHAM  Chair Drew, we may need to
make the video available afterwards. | believe there may be
an issue with playing video through Teans, where sound
doesn't cone through.

CHAIR DREW W apol ogi ze to everyone who is
participating in this meeting. There is a glitch that we
cannot play the audio fromthe video. So | think what |

W Il do is pause here and ask council menbers: |s that the
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end of your presentation?

And we'll watch it afterwards, and we'll ask
others, also, to watch it afterwards, after we conclude our
meeting today, so we don't spend the tine |ooking at a video
that no one else can see -- | nean, hear.

So are there questions fromcouncil nenbers? Go
ahead, Ms. Kelly.

SPEAKER KELLY: Thank you, Chair Drew.

This is Kate Kelly fromthe Departnent of
Commerce. | just have a question for the proponents. |
t hought | saw on sone of the materials that this was going
to be -- that 5,000 acres was going to be fenced in. 1Is
that correct?

BRI GHTNI GHT:  Yes, that is correct.

SPEAKER KELLY: So that's a lot -- a lot of
fence. Is it -- what's the inplications on wildlife?

BRI GHTNI GHT:  Yeah. | nean, so we were
wor ki ng on a nunber of things | kind of tal ked about on the
constraint side, you know W were trying to nove away from
where we thought there was val uable prey habitat and start
trying to avoid inpacts on wldlife.

Currently, the site is grazed by coupl e hundred
cattle. So it's pretty well-inpacted. But there is
wldlife, I'd say especially on the northern edge. So we

tried to pull the site down fromthat and as well as | ooked
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at -- a lot of our other projects, we |ooked at m gration
corridors and trying not to create a bottleneck in our
proj ects.

But we al so have this, you know, conpeting
operation here with sheep, and we do need to protect them
frompredation. So we are going to work wth the |andowner
t hrough this whole process to really understand where we
need fencing and not.

We think there is sonme nore fingers and, kind of,
m gration pathways we can add to the site, but really, our
main goal was to try to avoid where we surveilled wildlife
or knew there was historic presence of wildlife or their
prey habitat. So we tried to nove away fromthat, get nore
into those grazing areas.

SPEAKER KELLY: And so just to cone from --

t he sheep woul d graze there year-round and not go up into

the hills.

BRI GHTNI GHT:  Yes. So they woul d graze the
project year-round, nostly -- | nean, the grazing season is
spring, sumer and then a little bit of fall, and then we

w Il have to supplenent their feed in the wnter.

SPEAKER KELLY: Thank you.

CHAIR DREW And with sone of our projects to
follow on that thene, the fencing is raised a little bit to

allow for the smaller critters.
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BRI GHTNI GHT: Absolutely. [In Idaho we've
been working with BLM on sone sage grouse-friendly fencing,
essentially allowthem-- that's kind of a standard we
wanted for these projects.

We are faced with an interesting situation here,
where there are coyotes and we have sheep. So we're working
wth the | andowner on, you know, Wat does that |ook |ike?
Can we have wildlife-friendly fencing? Can we nove that
fencing? So that is something we are still working on the
project. But as far as the application, we kind of want to
take the worst-case scenario and say, we're putting this
fencing down to the ground, and then we're going to work and
see what we can do.

CHAI R DREW  Through the comments and i ssues
that mght arise and work with that.

BRI GHTNI GHT:  Yep.

CHAIR DREW Thank you. Are there additional
questions from council nenbers?

| wondered if you could share with us who is the
power off-taker.

BRI GATNI GHT:  Yeah, |I'msorry. That's not
public yet.

CHAI R DREW  Okay.

BRIGHTNIGHT: It will be sonetine here in
2023.
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CHAI R DREW (kay. Appreciate that.

Under st and.

Thank you for your presentation. W |ook forward

to viewing the video and also to hearing nore about this
project as we review your application,

Movi ng into our good of the order and the next
itembefore us is the third quarter cost allocation.

Ms. Bunpus.

SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER: Chair Drew, M. Bunpus

asked that | cover the cost allocation for the council
meeting this afternoon.

CHAIR DREW Thank you. | was actually
readi ng ny agenda. Go ahead, Ms. Haf keneyer.

SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER: Thank you.

So on the screen you'll see the cost allocation

for third quarter, which is January 1st through March 30th,

2023, and the allocation is as foll ows:

Kittitas Wnd Valley -- Kittitas Valley Wnd Power

project, four percent.
WIld Horse Wnd, four percent.
Col unbi a Generating Station, 21 percent.
Col unbi a Sol ar, four percent.
VWNP- 1, three percent.
Whi stling Ridge Energy, three percent.
Grays Harbor 1 and 2, eight percent.
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Chehalis Generation Facility, seven percent.

Desert ClaimWnd, three percent.

Goose Prairie Solar, four percent.

Hor se Heaven W nd, 15 percent.

Badger Muntain Sol ar, six percent.

Cypress Creek Renewabl es, which is the H gh Top
and Ostrea Project, six percent.

Waut oma Sol ar, six percent.

Hop H I I, six percent.

Are there any questions?

CHAI R DREW Any questions?

Thank you for that report. For the good of the
order, we do have sone new staff nenbers to introduce to the
council. M. Hafkeneyer.

SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER: Thank you, Chair Drew.

We do have a new addition to the EFSEC staff. A
knew siting specialist joined us on January 3rd. Joanne
Snarski is joining us as a siting specialist, and she w ||
be taking the | ead on the Badger Muntain Project.

CHAI R DREW  Thank you. And we al so have
Ms. Osta Davis with us, if you would like to introduce
yourself and tell about your role to the council.

SPEAKER DAVI S: Thank you, Chair Drew and
menbers of the council. M nane is Osta Davis, and |'m

EFSEC s new | egislative and policy nmanager. | wll be
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keeping track of all of the bills that go through the
| egi slature that affect EFSEC and make sure that EFSEC s
perspective is considered in the |egislative process.

| wanted to introduce nyself and offer up nyself
as a resource to the council. [If you do have any questions
about specific legislation or the |egislative process, feel
free to reach out, and |I'm happy to provi de an update there.
Thanks.

CHAIR DREW Thank you. And wel cone, to both

Csta and to Joanna.

Wth that, there's no further business to cone
before us, and the neeting is adjourned.

(Meeting concluded 2:31 p.m)
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 1                  BE IT REMEMBERED that on Wednesday,

 2   January 18, 2023, 1:30 p.m., the following proceedings were

 3   held before Ann Marie Allison, Certified Court Reporter

 4   residing in Pierce County, Washington.

 5                       (All parties present via Teams)

 6

 7           ***  MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 1:30 p.m.  ***

 8

 9                  CHAIR DREW:  Good afternoon.  This is

10   Kathleen Drew, chair of the Energy Facility Site Evaluation

11   Counsel, bringing our meeting to order.

12             We have had some feedback -- (No audio.)

13                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Start from the beginning,

14   Chair Drew.  For some reason it got muted from our sides.

15                  CHAIR DREW:  Certainly.

16                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Apologies.

17                  CHAIR DREW:  Good afternoon, this is Kathleen

18   Drew, chair of the Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council,

19   calling to order our January monthly meeting.

20             All of those of you who have microphones out there

21   that may be open, please check your microphones -- we're

22   getting some feedback in the room -- and make sure that they

23   are off.

24             Ms. Grantham, will you please call the roll?

25                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Certainly.
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 1             Department of Commerce.

 2                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Kate Kelly present.

 3                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Department of Ecology.

 4                  SPEAKER LEVITT:  Eli Levitt present.

 5                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish and

 6   Wildlife.

 7                  SPEAKER LIVINGSTON:  Mike Livingston present.

 8                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Department of Natural

 9   Resources.

10                  SPEAKER YOUNG:  Lenny Young present.

11                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Utilities and

12   Transportation Commission.

13                  SPEAKER BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster present.

14                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Local government and

15   optional state agencies for the Horse Heaven Project,

16   Department of Agriculture.

17                  SPEAKER SANDISON:  Derek Sandison present.

18                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Benton County, Ed Brost.

19                  SPEAKER BROST:  I'm here.

20                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  For the Badger Mountain

21   Project, Douglas County.

22                       (No response)

23                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  For the Wautoma Solar

24   Project for Benton County, Dave Sharp.

25                       (No response)
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 1                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Washington State

 2   Department of Transportation.

 3                       (No response)

 4                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  The Assistant Attorney

 5   General.

 6                  SPEAKER THOMPSON:  This is John Thompson,

 7   Assistant Attorney General.

 8                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Thank you.

 9             Administrative law judges, Adam Torem.

10                  JUDGE TOREM:  This is Judge Torem.  I'm here.

11                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Laura Bradley.

12                  JUDGE BRADLEY:  This is Judge Bradley; I'm

13   here.  Also, I've heard from Judge Gerard that he's having

14   difficulty joining the meeting, so he may not be with us

15   yet.

16                  JUDGE GERARD:  I'm in now.  Thank you.

17                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Perfect.  Thank you.  Dan

18   Gerard is present.  Thank you.

19             For EFSEC staff, Sonia Bumpus.

20                       (No response)

21                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Amy Hafkemeyer.

22                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Amy Hafkemeyer present.

23                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Amy Moon.

24                  SPEAKER MOON:  Amy Moon present.

25                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Patty Betts.
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 1                       (No response)

 2                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Stew Henderson.

 3                       (No response)

 4                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Joan Owens.

 5                  SPEAKER J. OWENS:  Present.

 6                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Dave Walker.

 7                  SPEAKER WALKER:  Dave Walker present.

 8                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Sonya Skavland.

 9                  SPEAKER SKAVLAND:  Sonya Skavland present.

10                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Lisa Masengale.

11                  SPEAKER MASENGALE:  Lisa Masengale present.

12                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Sara Randolph.

13                  SPEAKER RANDOLPH:  Sara Randolph present.

14                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Sean Greene.

15                       (No response)

16                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Lance Caputo.

17                  SPEAKER CAPUTO:  Lance Caputo present.

18                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  John Barnes.

19                  SPEAKER BARNES:  John Barnes present.

20                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Osta Davis.

21                  SPEAKER DAVIS:  Osta Davis --

22                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Joanne Snarski.

23                  SPEAKER SNARSKI:  Present.

24                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  For the operational

25   updates, Kittitas Valley Wind Project.
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 1                  SPEAKER MELBARDIS:  Eric Melbardis present.

 2                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Wild Horse Wind Power

 3   Project.

 4                  SPEAKER GALBRAITH:  Jennifer Galbraith

 5   present.

 6                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Grays Harbor Energy

 7   Center.

 8                  SPEAKER SHERIN:  Chris Sherin present.

 9                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Chehalis Generation

10   Facility.

11                  SPEAKER ADAMS:  Mike Adams present.

12                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Columbia Generating

13   Station.

14                  SPEAKER SCHMIDT:  Marshall Schmidt present.

15                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Columbia Solar.

16                  SPEAKER HURD:  Owen Hurd present.

17                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  And do we have someone

18   here for the counsel for the environment?

19                       (No response)

20             Hearing none, Chair, there is a quorum for the

21   regular counsel, the Horse Heaven counsel and the Wautoma

22   counsel.  Thank you.

23                  SPEAKER BREWSTER:  This is Stacey Brewster.

24   I move that we approve the November monthly meeting minutes.

25                  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Second.
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 1                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Kate Kelly, second.

 2                       (No audio)

 3                  CHAIR DREW:  I'm sorry.  I'll start again.

 4             I have two changes to make.  The first one is on

 5   page 8, line 21.  The word "professional" should be

 6   "facility," and on page 52, line 3, before the word "walk,"

 7   it should say "I will."

 8             Are there any other changes for the November

 9   monthly meeting minutes?

10                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Chair Drew, this is Kate

11   Kelly.  Can you hear me?

12                  CHAIR DREW:  Yes.  Go ahead.

13                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Okay.  We're just having a

14   little trouble hearing you sometimes.

15             I have two changes on page 21 for some reason.

16   The top line, Line No. 1, "effective" should be "executive."

17                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

18                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Line 14, the word "quart"

19   should be "short."

20                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

21                  SPEAKER KELLY:  You're welcome.

22                  CHAIR DREW:  Are there any other changes for

23   the monthly meeting minutes?

24             Hearing none, all those in favor of the November

25   monthly meeting minutes as amended, please say "Aye."
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 1                       (Aye.)

 2                  CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?

 3             The minutes are amended.

 4             I'm going to take a step backwards and ask for

 5   approval of adopting the agenda for today's meeting.  Is

 6   there a motion to approve the agenda for today's meeting?

 7                  SPEAKER YOUNG:  Lenny Young, so move.

 8                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

 9                  SPEAKER BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster, second.

10                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  All those in favor

11   of approving the agenda for today, please say "Aye."

12                       (Aye.)

13             All those opposed?

14             The agenda is approved.

15             Okay.  Now moving on to the second set of minutes,

16   as I get there on my screen.  Is there a motion to approve

17   the minutes for the November 29th special meeting?

18                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Kate Kelly, move to approve

19   the minutes.

20                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  Second?

21                  SPEAKER LEVITT:  Eli Levitt, second.

22                  CHAIR DREW:  Are there any changes to that

23   set of minutes?

24             Hearing none, all those in favor of approving the

25   minutes for the September -- I'm sorry -- November 29th
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 1   special meeting please say "Aye."

 2                       (Aye.)

 3                  CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?

 4             The minutes are approved.

 5             Okay.  Moving on in our agenda to the facility

 6   updates.  Mr. Melbardis with Kittitas Valley Wind Project,

 7   please go ahead.

 8                  SPEAKER MELBARDIS:  Good afternoon, Chair

 9   Drew, EFSEC council and staff.  For the record, this is Eric

10   Melbardis.  I think you asked us to spell that this time.

11   M-E-L --

12                  CHAIR DREW:  Mr. Melbardis, we have you on

13   the list that we will send to the court reporter, so yes.

14                  SPEAKER MELBARDIS:  Okay.  So yes, I am with

15   EDP Renewables for the Kittitas Valley Wind Power Project,

16   and I have nothing non-routine to report for the period.

17                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

18             Moving on to Wild Horse Wind Power Facility,

19   Ms. Galbraith.

20                  SPEAKER GALBRAITH:  Thank you, Chair Drew,

21   council members and staff.  This is Jennifer Galbraith with

22   Puget Sound Energy, representing the Wild Horse Wind

23   Facility, and I have nothing non-routine to report for the

24   month of November or December.

25                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.
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 1             Grays Harbor Energy Facility, Mr. Sherin.

 2                  SPEAKER SHERIN:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,

 3   council members, staff.  This is Chris Sherin, the land

 4   manager at Grays Harbor Energy Center.

 5             For the month of November, I have no non-routine

 6   items to report.  I will note though that we weren't (ph.)

 7   limited to one-by-one operation for two weeks, due to

 8   transmission line maintenance on the Paul Olympia Satsop sub

 9   or transmission line.

10             In the month of November, I have no non-routine

11   items to report.

12                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

13             For Chehalis Generation Facility.

14                  SPEAKER ADAMS:  Yeah.  Good afternoon, Chair

15   Drew, EFSEC council and staff.  This is Mike Adams, plant

16   manager at the Chehalis Generation Facility.  For the month

17   of November, I have no non-routine items to report.

18                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

19             Columbia Generating Station.

20                  SPEAKER SCHMIDT:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,

21   council members and staff.  For the record, this is Marshall

22   Schmidt reporting for Columbia Generating Station.

23             For the month of November, I only have one update,

24   and that is on the 17th, Energy Northwest received approval

25   from EFSEC for the Columbia Generating Station annual air
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 1   emission source registration, and that's for 2020 and 2021.

 2             For December, the only item I have to update is

 3   that on the 1st of the month, Energy Northwest received the

 4   inspection report for our 2022 Columbia Generating Station

 5   synthetic minor air inspection that was conducted back in

 6   October.  There were no issues or findings identified in

 7   that letter.

 8             That is all that I have to update.

 9                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

10             For the Columbia Solar Projects, Mr. Hurd.

11                  SPEAKER HURD:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,

12   council members and EFSEC staff.  This is Owen Hurd

13   reporting for the Columbia Solar Projects.  For the month of

14   November, total generation of 385 megawatt hours for the

15   Penstemon Project, 356 megawatt hours for the Camas Project

16   and on the Urtica Project for troubleshooting inverters and

17   substantial completion as expected in late January.

18             Thank you.

19                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

20             Yes?

21                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Sorry, Chair Drew.  If I

22   could, I wanted to step back just a bit.  We do have a line

23   item on the agenda for an update for the counsel on the

24   Columbia Generating Station NPDES permit provided by

25   Ms. Moon.
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 1                  CHAIR DREW:  And that was, for the record,

 2   Ms. Hafkemeyer.

 3             And I was following the sheets in my packet and

 4   not the agenda, so my apologies there.

 5             Ms. Moon, this is the NPDES permit update.  Go

 6   ahead, Ms. Moon.

 7                  SPEAKER MOON:  Thank you.

 8             Good afternoon Council Chair Drew and council

 9   members.  For the record, this is Amy Moon, EFSEC staff

10   member providing an update on the National Pollutant

11   Discharge Elimination System, or NPDES permit, at the

12   Columbia Generating Station.

13             The last time there was action taken by the

14   council on the NPDES permit was in 2019, and the council

15   members have changed quite a bit since then.  And I want to

16   provide you and the public with a brief summary of the NPDES

17   permit and permit program.

18             Energy Northwest operates a nuclear-fueled steam

19   electric power generation plant known as the Columbia

20   Generating Station, that discharges to the Columbia River.

21   EFSEC regulates the discharge to the Columbia River under

22   the NPDES permit program.

23             This regulatory authority warrants a brief

24   explanation, beginning with the Clean Water Act.  The

25   federal Clean Water Act, first enacted in 1972, established
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 1   water quality goals for the navigable surface waters of the

 2   United States.  One mechanism for achieving the goals of the

 3   Clean Water Act is the NPDES, administered by the Federal

 4   Environmental Protection Agency or EPA.

 5             The EPA authorized the State of Washington to

 6   manage the NPDES permit program in our state.  The

 7   Washington State Legislature accepted the delegation and

 8   assigned the power and duty for conducting NPDES permitting

 9   and enforcement to EFSEC for facilities under EFSEC

10   authority.

11             EFSEC worked with the Washington Department of

12   Ecology and issued the current NPDES permit on

13   September 30th of 2014.  This permit was modified twice, on

14   February 8th of 2016 and again on March 19th of 2019.

15             Although the NPDES was issued with an

16   October 31st, 2019, expiration date, EFSEC administratively

17   extended the permit on September 13th, 2019, after accepting

18   the NPDES renewal application on August 6th, 2019, in

19   accordance with the Washington State Administrative

20   Procedure Act, which is the Revised Code of Washington

21   34.05.422(3) and the Washington Administrative Code

22   463-76-061(4).

23             Today I want to let you know that EFSEC has been

24   working with Ecology on the new NPDES permit and expects to

25   have the draft permit and fact sheet ready for presentation
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 1   to the council in February.

 2             Does the council have any questions?

 3                  CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions from

 4   council members?

 5             No.  Thank you.

 6             Next item in the next order on our agenda is Horse

 7   Heaven Wind Farm.  Ms. Moon.

 8                  SPEAKER MOON:  Thank you, Council, Chair Drew

 9   and council members.  Again, for the record, this is Amy

10   Moon, EFSEC staff member, providing a draft environmental

11   impact statement or draft EIS update on the Horse Heaven

12   Wind Project.

13             The draft EIS was issued December 19th, 2022, for

14   a 45-day comment period ending February 1st of 2023.  Copies

15   of the draft EIS are posted for public review on the EFSEC

16   public website, and electronic copies were distributed to

17   public libraries near the Horse Heaven Wind Project -- or

18   proposed project area, as well as to the Washington State

19   Library in Olympia.  Public comments may be submitted to the

20   EFSEC comment database or by US mail to the EFSEC mailing

21   address.

22             After the comment period closes, EFSEC will review

23   the comments received to determine if additional information

24   gathering and analysis should be done to improve the

25   environmental analysis for the final EIS.
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 1             Does the council have any questions?

 2                  CHAIR DREW:  Any questions from council

 3   members?

 4                  SPEAKER BREWSTER:  Just a question of how

 5   long you expect it to take to go through the comments.

 6                  SPEAKER MOON:  Since we're still in the

 7   comment period and we don't know how many comments or the

 8   content of those comments, that's hard to answer.

 9             We do have a contractor that will be working on

10   sorting the comments and tabulating and figuring out what

11   topics we have and whether or not additional

12   information-gathering will need to be done and what

13   additional analysis will have to occur.

14             Does that answer your question it's a vague

15   answer, but...(pause).

16                  SPEAKER BREWSTER:  I expect so.

17                  SPEAKER MOON:  Okay.  Thank you.

18                  CHAIR DREW:  Any other questions?

19             Okay.  Thank you.

20             Moving on to the Goose Prairie Solar Project,

21   project updates.  Ms. Randolph.

22                  SPEAKER RANDOLPH:  Good afternoon, Chair

23   Drew, council members and staff.  For the record, this is

24   Sara Randolph, the site specialist for the Goose Prairie

25   Facility.
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 1             EFSEC staff received a draft of the initial site

 2   restoration plan, or ISRP, from the certificate holder,

 3   which is available to you in your packet.  Staff have

 4   reviewed the draft in consultation with our independent

 5   contractor and our attorney general and determined that the

 6   plan complies with the facility site certification

 7   agreement, or SCA, an agreement and regulation, excuse me,

 8   with Washington Administrative Code or WAC 463-72.

 9             The ISRP is required to be approved by the

10   council, per WAC 463-72-030.  At this time, staff are

11   recommending that the council vote to approve the ISRP as

12   provided.

13             EFSEC staff received two comments in the ISRP.

14   Neither comment warranted a change in the draft ISRP as we

15   received it.

16             Are there any questions?

17                  CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions for

18   staff?

19             Hearing none, I would ask the council:  Seeing and

20   having a chance to review the ISRP or initial site

21   restoration plan, is there a motion to approve that plan?

22                  SPEAKER YOUNG:  Lenny Young, so move.

23                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

24             Second?

25                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Kate Kelly, second.
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 1                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

 2             Are there any comments?

 3             The plan seems to me to be in good order and

 4   certainly covers the -- what is required both in our rules

 5   and in the site certification agreement, so I commend it to

 6   you.

 7             All those in favor of approving Goose Prairie

 8   Solar Initial Site Restoration Plan, please say "Aye."

 9                       (Aye.)

10                  CHAIR DREW:  All those opposed?

11             The plan is approved.  Thank you.

12             Badger Mountain Project update.  Ms. Hafkemeyer.

13                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you, Chair Drew.

14   Good afternoon, council.

15             Staff have been working with our contractor in the

16   initial stages of drafting the environmental impact

17   statement.  On December 27th, EFSEC staff sent a second data

18   request to the applicant in support of the draft EIS.  Staff

19   have also received additional studies from the applicant as

20   coordinated with EFSEC staff and contracted agencies of

21   expertise.

22             Are there any questions?

23                  CHAIR DREW:  Are there -- so this is the

24   preparation of the draft EIS phase that we are in now for

25   Badger Mountain.  Correct?
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 1                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Correct.  EFSEC staff

 2   are working with our contractor to draft the sections of the

 3   EIS, which will then be compiled for issuance later this

 4   year.

 5                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

 6             Any other questions?  Okay.  Thank you.

 7             Whistling Ridge.  Ms. Hafkemeyer.

 8                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you, Chair Drew.

 9   Again, this is Amy Hafkemeyer, for the record.

10             EFSEC staff are waiting for the certificate holder

11   to submit the remaining materials for the FCA amendment

12   request.  There are no further updates at this time.

13                  CHAIR DREW:  On to the next project, High Top

14   and Ostrea.  Ms. Hafkemeyer.

15                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you.  I'd like to

16   start by thanking the council for their attendance at the

17   conditional use criteria meeting last Wednesday.  At that

18   meeting there were four speakers.  EFSEC also received four

19   written comments, one of which was received verbally, as

20   well, and was one of the four commenters who spoke.

21             These comments included recommendations on fire

22   risk mitigation, recommendation on use of local labor, and

23   concerns about use of agricultural land and environmental

24   impacts and input on the EFSEC review process for this

25   project.
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 1             I'd like to take a moment to review the timeline

 2   of this project to date, highlighting the opportunities that

 3   we have had so far for public comment.

 4             On April 7th, EFSEC received the application for

 5   site certification RASC, as well as the letter requesting

 6   expedited process.

 7             On June 1st, EFSEC held the initial public

 8   informational meeting to receive public comment, followed by

 9   the land use consistency hearing to receive testimony from

10   the public.  Both of these meetings were held virtually.

11             On July 19th, at the regularly scheduled council

12   meeting, the council reviewed and approved an extension of

13   the expedited process and determination by ten weeks.

14             On October 18th, the council voted to approve

15   Order 884 determining the proposal to be consistent with

16   local land use ordinances in place at the time of

17   application.  Public comment was taken during the meeting on

18   this council action.

19             On October 1st, EFSEC issued a SEPA threshold

20   determination of mitigated determination of

21   non-significance, or MDNS, followed by a 14-day public

22   comment period.

23             On October 28, EFSEC issued the revised MDNS.

24             On November 2nd, the council went on a site tour

25   and viewed the High Top and Ostrea sites from a nearby
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 1   vantage point at which the public was welcome to attend.

 2             With the land use consistency determination made

 3   by Order 884 and the revised MDNS issued on October 28th,

 4   the council voted to approve the applicant's expedited

 5   request by Order 885 on November 15th.  Council action was

 6   open for public comment ahead of the November council

 7   meeting.

 8             On November 29th, the council reviewed and

 9   approved the request to extend the timeline for the

10   recommendation to February 22nd.  This action was open for

11   public comment ahead of the council meeting.

12             And then finally, last week, EFSEC held a

13   conditional use criteria meeting to receive public comment

14   on conditions related to the conditional use criteria as

15   identified in the Yakima County Code that could then be

16   included in a site certification agreement draft.

17             Are there any questions from the council on the

18   project activity to date?

19                  CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions about

20   the timeline and the actions the council has taken or public

21   comment opportunities?  Go ahead.

22                  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Thank you.

23             In consideration of our review of the application,

24   the issued MDNS, the determination of land use consistency

25   and the granting of expedited process, staff would like to
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 1   recommend that the council direct staff to prepare an order

 2   with the recommendation of approval, a draft site

 3   certification agreement and associated documents to be

 4   reviewed and voted on at the February 15th council meeting.

 5                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  Are there any

 6   questions from council members?

 7             Is there a motion to direct the staff to draft an

 8   order recommending approval of the project for the February

 9   meeting?

10                  SPEAKER LEVITT:  Eli Levitt, motion to direct

11   the staff.

12                  CHAIR DREW:  Second?

13                  SPEAKER BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster, second.

14                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

15             Are there any questions or comments on this

16   motion?

17             A lot of work has gone into reviewing the

18   application, working with agencies who have had concerns on

19   the project, that have been actually worked through in terms

20   of the mitigation.  That has -- is all part of our package

21   as we go forward, and I commend this project to you and

22   encourage a yes vote.

23             I will ask for a roll call vote.

24             Clerk, will you call -- Ms. Grantham, will you

25   call the roll for the EFSEC council, which is also the High

0023

 1   Top and Ostrea council.

 2                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Yes.  No problem.

 3             Chair Drew.

 4                  CHAIR DREW:  Aye.

 5                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Department of Commerce,

 6   Kate Kelly.

 7                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Aye.

 8                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish and

 9   Wildlife.

10                  SPEAKER LIVINGSTON:  Aye.

11                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Department of Ecology, Eli

12   Levitt.

13                  SPEAKER LEVITT:  Aye.

14                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Utilities and

15   Transportation Commission, Stacey Brewster.

16                  SPEAKER BREWSTER:  Aye.

17                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Department of Natural

18   Resources, Lenny Young.

19                  SPEAKER YOUNG:  Aye.

20                  CHAIR DREW:  The motion is approved.

21             I will point out to the public that the order will

22   be drafted before the next council meeting, and you will

23   have time to send in your comments to us about that draft

24   order.  So that's the next step.  We haven't finalized the

25   order, so the opportunity will be to comment on the proposed
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 1   order before the next meeting.  Thank you all.

 2             Moving on to the next item on our agenda, which is

 3   the Wautoma Solar Project update, Mr. Caputo.

 4                  SPEAKER CAPUTO:  Thank you, Chair Drew and

 5   council members.  For the record, my name is Lance Caputo.

 6   I'm the EFSEC staff assigned to the Wautoma Project.

 7             The state briefly -- we are in the stage of the

 8   process where we thoroughly review the application and then

 9   request supplemental data.

10             In October of 2022, EFSEC sent the applicant a

11   request for additional information.  We received the

12   applicant's response to Data Request No. 1 in mid November.

13             On the 27th of December, a second request for

14   additional information was sent.  However, due to the

15   holiday season, the applicant requested a 45-day period to

16   respond.  We anticipate a reply by 15th of January 2023, and

17   in the meantime, we are continuing to work with the

18   applicant and our contractors on this project.

19                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

20             So those data requests are to help with the staff

21   completion of the determination of significance for the

22   project.  Is that correct?

23                  SPEAKER CAPUTO:  Correct.  They fill in

24   missing gaps in the application so that we can make a proper

25   SEPA determination.
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 1                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

 2             So the next step will be the SEPA determination,

 3   which is made by Sonia Bumpus, our EFSEC director, and then

 4   from there that information will come back to the council.

 5                  SPEAKER CAPUTO:  Correct.

 6                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

 7             Any questions?  And we also had a site visit of

 8   Wautoma as well, so I think that's helpful for us as we

 9   consider that project.

10             Moving on to Hop Hill Solar, this is a new

11   application that has just recently come to EFSEC.

12             Ms. Hafkemeyer.

13                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you.  For the

14   record, this is Amy Hafkemeyer.

15             On December 22nd, EFSEC staff received the

16   application for the proposed Hop Hill Solar Facility.  The

17   applicant is here today to give a brief introduction to the

18   project, more detail on which will be provided at the public

19   informational meeting.

20             Staff are currently working to schedule this

21   meeting and will update the council and the public as

22   details become available.

23             Are there any questions?

24                  CHAIR DREW:  Any questions?

25             Go ahead.
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 1                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Hearing none, I will

 2   hand the floor over to the applicant to introduce themselves

 3   to the council.

 4                  SPEAKER TYSON:  Thank you, Chair Drew,

 5   council members and staff.  So excited to come here and talk

 6   a little bit about the Hop Hill Project, but real quickly,

 7   just as a matter of introductions, my name's Chris

 8   Wissel-Tyson.  I lead development here for BrightNight in

 9   the Pacific Northwest.  I'm based just north of Seattle, and

10   I'll let Ron introduce himself.

11                  CHAIR DREW:  If you can spell your name

12   for --

13                  SPEAKER TYSON:  Sorry about that.

14                  CHAIR DREW:   -- the court reporter.

15                  SPEAKER TYSON:  C-H-R-I-S-T-O-P-H-E-R.  And I

16   have a hyphenated last name, W-I-S-S-E-L dash T-Y-S-O-N.

17                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.

18                  SPEAKER KIECANA:  And I'm Ron Kiecana,

19   K-I-E-C-A-N-A.  I'm the chief development officer with

20   BrightNight Power.  And thank you, Chair Drew and EFSEC

21   staff for the opportunity to introduce BrightNight and the

22   Hop Hill Project today.

23                  SPEAKER TYSON:  We'll move quickly to the

24   next slide and just a little background behind who we are

25   and the company BrightNight.
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 1             We're an independent power producer.  I'd say

 2   young in current formation, we were formed in 2018, but I'd

 3   say old in pedigree and experience amongst the team.  We are

 4   the next iteration of a company that was started by Martin

 5   Hermann, called 8minutenergy.  8minute, from around 2010 to

 6   2018, was a large private solar developer in the United

 7   States and really changed the way we looked at large

 8   utility-scale solar projects.  He built projects in Southern

 9   California and Nevada and Arizona that set price records at

10   the time and really showed that large solar projects can be

11   competitive with fossil fuel projects.

12             But around 2017-2018, he started to come to the

13   realization that if we're going to truly decarbonize the

14   grid, we're going to have to move from as available

15   renewable technology, when wind blows or when it's sunny or

16   when the hydro's running with a large runoff in the spring,

17   to something that's more dispatchable, like a traditional

18   power plant.  And that's why he formed BrightNight, and we

19   are a purpose-built team for that goal.

20             I'll get a little bit into that next slide, but

21   just real quick, we have a US portfolio of around 21

22   gigawatts, two gigawatts in the Asia Pacific.  We have two

23   financial partners, CPPIB, the Canadian pension fund, is a

24   partner in all of our western projects, and we also have

25   GIP, Global Infrastructure Partners, which is one of the
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 1   largest infrastructure funds in the world, and they support

 2   our US portfolio.

 3             One point of clarification, we are an IDP.  We

 4   intend to develop, build and own these projects for up to 40

 5   to 50 years.  We are not trying to sell the project before

 6   or right after construction.  That's not how we're built.

 7   So I think it does change, a little bit, how we do business

 8   as a company.  Stakeholders, neighbor relationships, just

 9   the design of the plants and thinking about our rate payers

10   and customers, us, as power buyers, is very important to us

11   when we have that kind of -- you want to say something?

12             I was just going to check on the next part here.

13   And just moving along, we're now a team of about 110 people,

14   with operations here in the US, as well as over in Asia

15   Pacific.  85 people are located here in the US, and we have

16   a strong team here in the Northwest.  They're located here;

17   six people reside here in the Northwest.  We're a big

18   believer in being very close to the customers and to the

19   markets which we aspire to be a part of in the future.

20             If we can move on to the next slide here, I just

21   want to touch on -- this is something that is very different

22   and is part of BrightNight.  And this is a proprietary

23   software platform that we have developed here at

24   BrightNight, and this supports our focus on structuring

25   clean power products for our customer.
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 1             And so as Chris mentioned, there is a difference

 2   between clean energy and clean power.  You're going to get

 3   clean energy when the sun is shining, wind is blowing.  We

 4   focus on clean power and providing that power when the

 5   customer really values it and needs it most.  And it can

 6   most be beneficial from an operations perspective for the

 7   customer and for the transmission system.

 8             So our PowerAlpha platform, very quickly, is able

 9   to very quickly analyze immense amounts of data across

10   intermittent resources and identify where the gaps are.  So

11   we look for opportunities to combine intermittent resources

12   to provide structured, more valuable clean power products to

13   customers.

14             Sometimes this does involve using energy storage.

15   Other times it may involve just layering in more

16   intermittent energy, such as wind, solar, possibly even

17   hydro.  So again, very powerful tool core to BrightNight and

18   a big part of what we do here as a team here in the US.

19                  SPEAKER TYSON:  Two slides, I'll talk a

20   little bit about the Hop Hill Energy Project.  This is a PVS

21   500-megawatt project in Benton County, Washington, Central

22   Washington, around 5,000 acres within the fence line.  And

23   we actually have three different potential points of

24   interconnect and interconnect applications with the EPA.

25             We have four main goals with the Hop Hill Project.
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 1   One is to provide low-cost and reliable energy in an area

 2   that compliments already-existing resources.  And so that's

 3   the Columbia River dams and what's really called the

 4   Northwest hub, as well as other resources, such as nuclear,

 5   to help meet growing needs in the region as well as the

 6   state.

 7             2.  We wanted to avoid expensive and lengthy

 8   infrastructure projects.  I'm sure you guys know, but we are

 9   extremely constrained here in Washington and Oregon as well,

10   mostly around the BPA system.  There's just no transmission

11   left to bring a lot of new projects online to meet our

12   renewable goals.

13             If you put, for example, a project maybe closer to

14   Spokane, Eastern Washington, you can trigger upgrades on the

15   east and west side of Washington, as well as Portland and

16   Eastern Oregon.  And those upgrades can take 10 to 15 years,

17   and it's a big impact on everyone that's experiencing those

18   upgrades.

19             So we looked across Washington's BPA system and

20   really tried to find a location where we can inject a large

21   amount of renewable power without triggering those long

22   upgrades, which allows us to come online in two to three

23   years and deliver to customers and help meet renewable goals

24   and not trigger all these projects across multiple states.

25             No. 3, minimizing natural resource impacts while
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 1   maximizing community benefits.  So these projects bring a

 2   lot of tax revenue to communities, but we heard, kind of,

 3   three main concerns, and we worked with -- we've been

 4   talking to Benton County over two-and-a-half years.  I mean,

 5   one is visual, and the other one is impact to productive

 6   land, and a third is pristine habitat, impact to its

 7   pristine habitat.

 8             So really tried to find a site that was a happy

 9   medium between all these impacts.  We wanted to avoid any

10   irrigated land.  We also wanted to avoid those higher value

11   habitat areas and wanted to seat the project in a location

12   in which it was shielded from the rest of the community as

13   much as we could.  That's how we picked this site just south

14   of Rattlesnake Hill, and it's on low-productivity grazing

15   land.

16             No. 4.  One thing that's very important to us is

17   co-use, and we'll talk about this in two slides.  But we

18   wanted to maintain the productive nature of the land.  Even

19   though this is low productivity grazing land, we really

20   think that we can work in concert with traditional

21   agricultural practices.

22             So for this site we are doing sheep grazing across

23   the entire project, and it will probably be the largest

24   project, we think, in the Pacific Northwest to pursue this

25   type of agrivoltaics.
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 1             I'll talk about that.  And if we can switch, go

 2   one more slide.

 3             Just real quick, on a little bit more about the

 4   micrositing of the project.  You guys understand, I think,

 5   why we came to this area.  And if you look on the south or

 6   bottom of your screen there, you can see the white areas are

 7   solar panels, so there's a lot of design considerations once

 8   we narrowed into this site.  One was natural resources.

 9             We actually talk a lot to WDFW.  One, about

10   habitat that borders, I'd say, to the north of the site, of

11   actual species that they were concerned about.  In this

12   case, it was the Ferruginous Hawk, and so we actually moved

13   all our panels from the west to the east to try to avoid the

14   Ferruginous Hawk's prey habitat in that area.

15             Culture and archaeological, we did transect

16   surveys and we've hired, we think, very good local

17   consultants that understand our stakeholders and really

18   helped in that stakeholder outreach.

19             Water resources, there is some water in the draws

20   between the sites, but we'll really be able to avoid those

21   impacts through our crossings.

22             Visual impact, which I already talked about a

23   little bit, and then topography and existing agricultural

24   operations.

25             So with all these design considerations or
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 1   constraints, we came up with this layout which will be

 2   included in our permit.

 3             And I'll move to the next slide.  I know we don't

 4   have a lot of time.

 5             This is one thing I really wanted to talk about.

 6   I mean, because we really think that the industry -- this is

 7   where the industry needs to go, and it really can be a part

 8   of agriculture.  So we're really focused on agrivoltaics in

 9   the company.  Our owner, Martin, has two regenerative farms.

10   It's a big focus of ours, and we think this is the way we're

11   going to have to do business and really work in a symbiotic

12   relationship in the future.

13             There's an agricultural Oregon State professor

14   that said:  Solar panels are farm equipment and the sun is a

15   farm resource.

16             We like that.  We think that's a good goal and

17   maybe where we can move, but we do think we already

18   complement existing traditional ag practices.  And so for

19   this site, we're pursuing sheep grazing.  And there's really

20   good research, locally, about the advantages of doing that.

21             There's a study, specifically, on sheep grazing,

22   same type of landscape and low-productivity grazing land.

23   They see up to about a 300 percent improvement in water

24   conservation just by the shading.  By doing that shading you

25   get twice the plant growth.  And it's because on the eastern
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 1   side of the Cascades here, we are water limited, not sun or

 2   photon limited.  And what does that equal?  Actually, about

 3   a ten percent increase in care and capacity of sheep on the

 4   site.

 5             So not only does this work well with an existing

 6   ag practice, but actually improves it.  So we really think

 7   it's a great model going forward.

 8             We're also very excited; this was actually -- this

 9   property was an historic sheep operation since the landowner

10   originally homesteaded the land and expanded it, they raised

11   sheep for years and ran them up into the mountains.  There

12   was, I'd say, a little bit of a crash in the wool market a

13   couple decades ago, and now trends are changing again and

14   it's starting to make more sense.

15             So we're really excited to bring this sheep

16   operation back to the property.  And he will actually own

17   and run this, so it's quite exciting.

18             And lastly, we want to support agrivoltaics in the

19   future.  I mean, this isn't just us in this project.  We're

20   committed to really supporting the industry and making sure

21   that we're doing business in a way that works well with our

22   local communities.

23             So we're actually funding a research project

24   through a local university.  We'll announce it soon, but

25   it's really on the impact of co-use on this project and
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 1   actually nutrient transport.  Without getting into details,

 2   sheep like to sit under the panels, and so they do certain

 3   things there.  So a lot of nutrients is concentrated under

 4   those panels, and there's a lot of interest on how that

 5   nutrient flows throughout the property.

 6             That's about it.  We do have a quick video, if we

 7   do have time, about the project as well.

 8                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  I just wanted to add one more

 9   thing.  We do have a power sale commitment in place for 280

10   megawatts of the 500 megawatts that's being shown here in

11   the application, and that power will -- clean energy power

12   will be used for future Washington State clean power

13   requirements.

14                       (Video being played.  No audio)

15                  CHAIR DREW:  Can we pause for a minute?  I'm

16   seeing messages that there is not audio for those who are

17   not in this room.

18                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Chair Drew, we may need to

19   make the video available afterwards.  I believe there may be

20   an issue with playing video through Teams, where sound

21   doesn't come through.

22                  CHAIR DREW:  We apologize to everyone who is

23   participating in this meeting.  There is a glitch that we

24   cannot play the audio from the video.  So I think what I

25   will do is pause here and ask council members:  Is that the
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 1   end of your presentation?

 2             And we'll watch it afterwards, and we'll ask

 3   others, also, to watch it afterwards, after we conclude our

 4   meeting today, so we don't spend the time looking at a video

 5   that no one else can see -- I mean, hear.

 6             So are there questions from council members?  Go

 7   ahead, Ms. Kelly.

 8                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Thank you, Chair Drew.

 9             This is Kate Kelly from the Department of

10   Commerce.  I just have a question for the proponents.  I

11   thought I saw on some of the materials that this was going

12   to be -- that 5,000 acres was going to be fenced in.  Is

13   that correct?

14                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  Yes, that is correct.

15                  SPEAKER KELLY:  So that's a lot -- a lot of

16   fence.  Is it -- what's the implications on wildlife?

17                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  Yeah.  I mean, so we were

18   working on a number of things I kind of talked about on the

19   constraint side, you know.  We were trying to move away from

20   where we thought there was valuable prey habitat and start

21   trying to avoid impacts on wildlife.

22             Currently, the site is grazed by couple hundred

23   cattle.  So it's pretty well-impacted.  But there is

24   wildlife, I'd say especially on the northern edge.  So we

25   tried to pull the site down from that and as well as looked
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 1   at -- a lot of our other projects, we looked at migration

 2   corridors and trying not to create a bottleneck in our

 3   projects.

 4             But we also have this, you know, competing

 5   operation here with sheep, and we do need to protect them

 6   from predation.  So we are going to work with the landowner

 7   through this whole process to really understand where we

 8   need fencing and not.

 9             We think there is some more fingers and, kind of,

10   migration pathways we can add to the site, but really, our

11   main goal was to try to avoid where we surveilled wildlife

12   or knew there was historic presence of wildlife or their

13   prey habitat.  So we tried to move away from that, get more

14   into those grazing areas.

15                  SPEAKER KELLY:  And so just to come from --

16   the sheep would graze there year-round and not go up into

17   the hills.

18                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  Yes.  So they would graze the

19   project year-round, mostly -- I mean, the grazing season is

20   spring, summer and then a little bit of fall, and then we

21   will have to supplement their feed in the winter.

22                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Thank you.

23                  CHAIR DREW:  And with some of our projects to

24   follow on that theme, the fencing is raised a little bit to

25   allow for the smaller critters.
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 1                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  Absolutely.  In Idaho we've

 2   been working with BLM on some sage grouse-friendly fencing,

 3   essentially allow them -- that's kind of a standard we

 4   wanted for these projects.

 5             We are faced with an interesting situation here,

 6   where there are coyotes and we have sheep.  So we're working

 7   with the landowner on, you know, What does that look like?

 8   Can we have wildlife-friendly fencing?  Can we move that

 9   fencing?  So that is something we are still working on the

10   project.  But as far as the application, we kind of want to

11   take the worst-case scenario and say, we're putting this

12   fencing down to the ground, and then we're going to work and

13   see what we can do.

14                  CHAIR DREW:  Through the comments and issues

15   that might arise and work with that.

16                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  Yep.

17                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  Are there additional

18   questions from council members?

19             I wondered if you could share with us who is the

20   power off-taker.

21                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  Yeah, I'm sorry.  That's not

22   public yet.

23                  CHAIR DREW:  Okay.

24                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  It will be sometime here in

25   2023.
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 1                  CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Appreciate that.

 2   Understand.

 3             Thank you for your presentation.  We look forward

 4   to viewing the video and also to hearing more about this

 5   project as we review your application.

 6             Moving into our good of the order and the next

 7   item before us is the third quarter cost allocation.

 8             Ms. Bumpus.

 9                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Chair Drew, Ms. Bumpus

10   asked that I cover the cost allocation for the council

11   meeting this afternoon.

12                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  I was actually

13   reading my agenda.  Go ahead, Ms. Hafkemeyer.

14                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you.

15             So on the screen you'll see the cost allocation

16   for third quarter, which is January 1st through March 30th,

17   2023, and the allocation is as follows:

18             Kittitas Wind Valley -- Kittitas Valley Wind Power

19   project, four percent.

20             Wild Horse Wind, four percent.

21             Columbia Generating Station, 21 percent.

22             Columbia Solar, four percent.

23             WNP-1, three percent.

24             Whistling Ridge Energy, three percent.

25             Grays Harbor 1 and 2, eight percent.
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 1             Chehalis Generation Facility, seven percent.

 2             Desert Claim Wind, three percent.

 3             Goose Prairie Solar, four percent.

 4             Horse Heaven Wind, 15 percent.

 5             Badger Mountain Solar, six percent.

 6             Cypress Creek Renewables, which is the High Top

 7   and Ostrea Project, six percent.

 8             Wautoma Solar, six percent.

 9             Hop Hill, six percent.

10             Are there any questions?

11                  CHAIR DREW:  Any questions?

12             Thank you for that report.  For the good of the

13   order, we do have some new staff members to introduce to the

14   council.  Ms. Hafkemeyer.

15                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you, Chair Drew.

16             We do have a new addition to the EFSEC staff.  A

17   knew siting specialist joined us on January 3rd.  Joanne

18   Snarski is joining us as a siting specialist, and she will

19   be taking the lead on the Badger Mountain Project.

20                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  And we also have

21   Ms. Osta Davis with us, if you would like to introduce

22   yourself and tell about your role to the council.

23                  SPEAKER DAVIS:  Thank you, Chair Drew and

24   members of the council.  My name is Osta Davis, and I'm

25   EFSEC's new legislative and policy manager.  I will be
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 1   keeping track of all of the bills that go through the

 2   legislature that affect EFSEC and make sure that EFSEC's

 3   perspective is considered in the legislative process.

 4             I wanted to introduce myself and offer up myself

 5   as a resource to the council.  If you do have any questions

 6   about specific legislation or the legislative process, feel

 7   free to reach out, and I'm happy to provide an update there.

 8   Thanks.

 9                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  And welcome, to both

10   Osta and to Joanna.

11             With that, there's no further business to come

12   before us, and the meeting is adjourned.

13                       (Meeting concluded 2:31 p.m.)

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

0042

 1

 2                      C E R T I F I C A T E

 3

 4

     STATE OF WASHINGTON )   I, Ann Marie G. Allison, CCR,

 5

                         )   certified court reporter, State of

 6

     COUNTY OF PIERCE    )   Washington, do hereby certify:

 7

 8       That the foregoing meeting was taken before me, via

     Teams video conference, completed on January 18, 2023, and

 9   thereafter transcribed by me;

10       That the transcript contains a full, true and complete

     reporting and transcription of the proceedings;
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         That I am not a relative, employee, attorney or counsel

12   of any party to this action, or relative or employee of any

     such attorney or counsel, and that I am not financially

13   interested in the said action or the outcome thereof;
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		176						LN		7		18		false		          18   here for the counsel for the environment?				false

		177						LN		7		19		false		          19                       (No response)				false

		178						LN		7		20		false		          20             Hearing none, Chair, there is a quorum for the				false

		179						LN		7		21		false		          21   regular counsel, the Horse Heaven counsel and the Wautoma				false

		180						LN		7		22		false		          22   counsel.  Thank you.				false
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		183						LN		7		25		false		          25                  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Second.				false

		184						PG		8		0		false		page 8				false

		185						LN		8		1		false		           1                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Kate Kelly, second.				false

		186						LN		8		2		false		           2                       (No audio)				false

		187						LN		8		3		false		           3                  CHAIR DREW:  I'm sorry.  I'll start again.				false

		188						LN		8		4		false		           4             I have two changes to make.  The first one is on				false

		189						LN		8		5		false		           5   page 8, line 21.  The word "professional" should be				false

		190						LN		8		6		false		           6   "facility," and on page 52, line 3, before the word "walk,"				false

		191						LN		8		7		false		           7   it should say "I will."				false

		192						LN		8		8		false		           8             Are there any other changes for the November				false

		193						LN		8		9		false		           9   monthly meeting minutes?				false

		194						LN		8		10		false		          10                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Chair Drew, this is Kate				false

		195						LN		8		11		false		          11   Kelly.  Can you hear me?				false

		196						LN		8		12		false		          12                  CHAIR DREW:  Yes.  Go ahead.				false

		197						LN		8		13		false		          13                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Okay.  We're just having a				false

		198						LN		8		14		false		          14   little trouble hearing you sometimes.				false

		199						LN		8		15		false		          15             I have two changes on page 21 for some reason.				false

		200						LN		8		16		false		          16   The top line, Line No. 1, "effective" should be "executive."				false

		201						LN		8		17		false		          17                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		202						LN		8		18		false		          18                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Line 14, the word "quart"				false

		203						LN		8		19		false		          19   should be "short."				false

		204						LN		8		20		false		          20                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		205						LN		8		21		false		          21                  SPEAKER KELLY:  You're welcome.				false

		206						LN		8		22		false		          22                  CHAIR DREW:  Are there any other changes for				false

		207						LN		8		23		false		          23   the monthly meeting minutes?				false

		208						LN		8		24		false		          24             Hearing none, all those in favor of the November				false

		209						LN		8		25		false		          25   monthly meeting minutes as amended, please say "Aye."				false

		210						PG		9		0		false		page 9				false

		211						LN		9		1		false		           1                       (Aye.)				false

		212						LN		9		2		false		           2                  CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?				false

		213						LN		9		3		false		           3             The minutes are amended.				false

		214						LN		9		4		false		           4             I'm going to take a step backwards and ask for				false

		215						LN		9		5		false		           5   approval of adopting the agenda for today's meeting.  Is				false

		216						LN		9		6		false		           6   there a motion to approve the agenda for today's meeting?				false

		217						LN		9		7		false		           7                  SPEAKER YOUNG:  Lenny Young, so move.				false

		218						LN		9		8		false		           8                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		219						LN		9		9		false		           9                  SPEAKER BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster, second.				false

		220						LN		9		10		false		          10                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  All those in favor				false

		221						LN		9		11		false		          11   of approving the agenda for today, please say "Aye."				false

		222						LN		9		12		false		          12                       (Aye.)				false

		223						LN		9		13		false		          13             All those opposed?				false

		224						LN		9		14		false		          14             The agenda is approved.				false

		225						LN		9		15		false		          15             Okay.  Now moving on to the second set of minutes,				false

		226						LN		9		16		false		          16   as I get there on my screen.  Is there a motion to approve				false

		227						LN		9		17		false		          17   the minutes for the November 29th special meeting?				false

		228						LN		9		18		false		          18                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Kate Kelly, move to approve				false

		229						LN		9		19		false		          19   the minutes.				false

		230						LN		9		20		false		          20                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  Second?				false

		231						LN		9		21		false		          21                  SPEAKER LEVITT:  Eli Levitt, second.				false

		232						LN		9		22		false		          22                  CHAIR DREW:  Are there any changes to that				false

		233						LN		9		23		false		          23   set of minutes?				false

		234						LN		9		24		false		          24             Hearing none, all those in favor of approving the				false

		235						LN		9		25		false		          25   minutes for the September -- I'm sorry -- November 29th				false

		236						PG		10		0		false		page 10				false

		237						LN		10		1		false		           1   special meeting please say "Aye."				false

		238						LN		10		2		false		           2                       (Aye.)				false

		239						LN		10		3		false		           3                  CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?				false

		240						LN		10		4		false		           4             The minutes are approved.				false

		241						LN		10		5		false		           5             Okay.  Moving on in our agenda to the facility				false

		242						LN		10		6		false		           6   updates.  Mr. Melbardis with Kittitas Valley Wind Project,				false

		243						LN		10		7		false		           7   please go ahead.				false

		244						LN		10		8		false		           8                  SPEAKER MELBARDIS:  Good afternoon, Chair				false

		245						LN		10		9		false		           9   Drew, EFSEC council and staff.  For the record, this is Eric				false

		246						LN		10		10		false		          10   Melbardis.  I think you asked us to spell that this time.				false

		247						LN		10		11		false		          11   M-E-L --				false

		248						LN		10		12		false		          12                  CHAIR DREW:  Mr. Melbardis, we have you on				false

		249						LN		10		13		false		          13   the list that we will send to the court reporter, so yes.				false

		250						LN		10		14		false		          14                  SPEAKER MELBARDIS:  Okay.  So yes, I am with				false

		251						LN		10		15		false		          15   EDP Renewables for the Kittitas Valley Wind Power Project,				false

		252						LN		10		16		false		          16   and I have nothing non-routine to report for the period.				false

		253						LN		10		17		false		          17                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		254						LN		10		18		false		          18             Moving on to Wild Horse Wind Power Facility,				false

		255						LN		10		19		false		          19   Ms. Galbraith.				false

		256						LN		10		20		false		          20                  SPEAKER GALBRAITH:  Thank you, Chair Drew,				false

		257						LN		10		21		false		          21   council members and staff.  This is Jennifer Galbraith with				false

		258						LN		10		22		false		          22   Puget Sound Energy, representing the Wild Horse Wind				false

		259						LN		10		23		false		          23   Facility, and I have nothing non-routine to report for the				false

		260						LN		10		24		false		          24   month of November or December.				false

		261						LN		10		25		false		          25                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		262						PG		11		0		false		page 11				false

		263						LN		11		1		false		           1             Grays Harbor Energy Facility, Mr. Sherin.				false

		264						LN		11		2		false		           2                  SPEAKER SHERIN:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,				false

		265						LN		11		3		false		           3   council members, staff.  This is Chris Sherin, the land				false

		266						LN		11		4		false		           4   manager at Grays Harbor Energy Center.				false

		267						LN		11		5		false		           5             For the month of November, I have no non-routine				false

		268						LN		11		6		false		           6   items to report.  I will note though that we weren't (ph.)				false

		269						LN		11		7		false		           7   limited to one-by-one operation for two weeks, due to				false

		270						LN		11		8		false		           8   transmission line maintenance on the Paul Olympia Satsop sub				false

		271						LN		11		9		false		           9   or transmission line.				false

		272						LN		11		10		false		          10             In the month of November, I have no non-routine				false

		273						LN		11		11		false		          11   items to report.				false

		274						LN		11		12		false		          12                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		275						LN		11		13		false		          13             For Chehalis Generation Facility.				false

		276						LN		11		14		false		          14                  SPEAKER ADAMS:  Yeah.  Good afternoon, Chair				false

		277						LN		11		15		false		          15   Drew, EFSEC council and staff.  This is Mike Adams, plant				false

		278						LN		11		16		false		          16   manager at the Chehalis Generation Facility.  For the month				false

		279						LN		11		17		false		          17   of November, I have no non-routine items to report.				false

		280						LN		11		18		false		          18                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		281						LN		11		19		false		          19             Columbia Generating Station.				false

		282						LN		11		20		false		          20                  SPEAKER SCHMIDT:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,				false

		283						LN		11		21		false		          21   council members and staff.  For the record, this is Marshall				false

		284						LN		11		22		false		          22   Schmidt reporting for Columbia Generating Station.				false

		285						LN		11		23		false		          23             For the month of November, I only have one update,				false

		286						LN		11		24		false		          24   and that is on the 17th, Energy Northwest received approval				false

		287						LN		11		25		false		          25   from EFSEC for the Columbia Generating Station annual air				false

		288						PG		12		0		false		page 12				false

		289						LN		12		1		false		           1   emission source registration, and that's for 2020 and 2021.				false

		290						LN		12		2		false		           2             For December, the only item I have to update is				false

		291						LN		12		3		false		           3   that on the 1st of the month, Energy Northwest received the				false

		292						LN		12		4		false		           4   inspection report for our 2022 Columbia Generating Station				false

		293						LN		12		5		false		           5   synthetic minor air inspection that was conducted back in				false

		294						LN		12		6		false		           6   October.  There were no issues or findings identified in				false

		295						LN		12		7		false		           7   that letter.				false

		296						LN		12		8		false		           8             That is all that I have to update.				false

		297						LN		12		9		false		           9                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		298						LN		12		10		false		          10             For the Columbia Solar Projects, Mr. Hurd.				false

		299						LN		12		11		false		          11                  SPEAKER HURD:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,				false

		300						LN		12		12		false		          12   council members and EFSEC staff.  This is Owen Hurd				false

		301						LN		12		13		false		          13   reporting for the Columbia Solar Projects.  For the month of				false

		302						LN		12		14		false		          14   November, total generation of 385 megawatt hours for the				false

		303						LN		12		15		false		          15   Penstemon Project, 356 megawatt hours for the Camas Project				false

		304						LN		12		16		false		          16   and on the Urtica Project for troubleshooting inverters and				false

		305						LN		12		17		false		          17   substantial completion as expected in late January.				false

		306						LN		12		18		false		          18             Thank you.				false

		307						LN		12		19		false		          19                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		308						LN		12		20		false		          20             Yes?				false

		309						LN		12		21		false		          21                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Sorry, Chair Drew.  If I				false

		310						LN		12		22		false		          22   could, I wanted to step back just a bit.  We do have a line				false

		311						LN		12		23		false		          23   item on the agenda for an update for the counsel on the				false

		312						LN		12		24		false		          24   Columbia Generating Station NPDES permit provided by				false

		313						LN		12		25		false		          25   Ms. Moon.				false
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		315						LN		13		1		false		           1                  CHAIR DREW:  And that was, for the record,				false

		316						LN		13		2		false		           2   Ms. Hafkemeyer.				false

		317						LN		13		3		false		           3             And I was following the sheets in my packet and				false

		318						LN		13		4		false		           4   not the agenda, so my apologies there.				false

		319						LN		13		5		false		           5             Ms. Moon, this is the NPDES permit update.  Go				false

		320						LN		13		6		false		           6   ahead, Ms. Moon.				false

		321						LN		13		7		false		           7                  SPEAKER MOON:  Thank you.				false

		322						LN		13		8		false		           8             Good afternoon Council Chair Drew and council				false

		323						LN		13		9		false		           9   members.  For the record, this is Amy Moon, EFSEC staff				false

		324						LN		13		10		false		          10   member providing an update on the National Pollutant				false

		325						LN		13		11		false		          11   Discharge Elimination System, or NPDES permit, at the				false

		326						LN		13		12		false		          12   Columbia Generating Station.				false

		327						LN		13		13		false		          13             The last time there was action taken by the				false

		328						LN		13		14		false		          14   council on the NPDES permit was in 2019, and the council				false

		329						LN		13		15		false		          15   members have changed quite a bit since then.  And I want to				false

		330						LN		13		16		false		          16   provide you and the public with a brief summary of the NPDES				false

		331						LN		13		17		false		          17   permit and permit program.				false

		332						LN		13		18		false		          18             Energy Northwest operates a nuclear-fueled steam				false

		333						LN		13		19		false		          19   electric power generation plant known as the Columbia				false

		334						LN		13		20		false		          20   Generating Station, that discharges to the Columbia River.				false

		335						LN		13		21		false		          21   EFSEC regulates the discharge to the Columbia River under				false

		336						LN		13		22		false		          22   the NPDES permit program.				false

		337						LN		13		23		false		          23             This regulatory authority warrants a brief				false

		338						LN		13		24		false		          24   explanation, beginning with the Clean Water Act.  The				false

		339						LN		13		25		false		          25   federal Clean Water Act, first enacted in 1972, established				false
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		341						LN		14		1		false		           1   water quality goals for the navigable surface waters of the				false

		342						LN		14		2		false		           2   United States.  One mechanism for achieving the goals of the				false

		343						LN		14		3		false		           3   Clean Water Act is the NPDES, administered by the Federal				false

		344						LN		14		4		false		           4   Environmental Protection Agency or EPA.				false

		345						LN		14		5		false		           5             The EPA authorized the State of Washington to				false

		346						LN		14		6		false		           6   manage the NPDES permit program in our state.  The				false

		347						LN		14		7		false		           7   Washington State Legislature accepted the delegation and				false

		348						LN		14		8		false		           8   assigned the power and duty for conducting NPDES permitting				false

		349						LN		14		9		false		           9   and enforcement to EFSEC for facilities under EFSEC				false

		350						LN		14		10		false		          10   authority.				false

		351						LN		14		11		false		          11             EFSEC worked with the Washington Department of				false

		352						LN		14		12		false		          12   Ecology and issued the current NPDES permit on				false

		353						LN		14		13		false		          13   September 30th of 2014.  This permit was modified twice, on				false

		354						LN		14		14		false		          14   February 8th of 2016 and again on March 19th of 2019.				false

		355						LN		14		15		false		          15             Although the NPDES was issued with an				false

		356						LN		14		16		false		          16   October 31st, 2019, expiration date, EFSEC administratively				false

		357						LN		14		17		false		          17   extended the permit on September 13th, 2019, after accepting				false

		358						LN		14		18		false		          18   the NPDES renewal application on August 6th, 2019, in				false

		359						LN		14		19		false		          19   accordance with the Washington State Administrative				false

		360						LN		14		20		false		          20   Procedure Act, which is the Revised Code of Washington				false

		361						LN		14		21		false		          21   34.05.422(3) and the Washington Administrative Code				false

		362						LN		14		22		false		          22   463-76-061(4).				false

		363						LN		14		23		false		          23             Today I want to let you know that EFSEC has been				false

		364						LN		14		24		false		          24   working with Ecology on the new NPDES permit and expects to				false

		365						LN		14		25		false		          25   have the draft permit and fact sheet ready for presentation				false
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		368						LN		15		2		false		           2             Does the council have any questions?				false

		369						LN		15		3		false		           3                  CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions from				false

		370						LN		15		4		false		           4   council members?				false

		371						LN		15		5		false		           5             No.  Thank you.				false

		372						LN		15		6		false		           6             Next item in the next order on our agenda is Horse				false

		373						LN		15		7		false		           7   Heaven Wind Farm.  Ms. Moon.				false

		374						LN		15		8		false		           8                  SPEAKER MOON:  Thank you, Council, Chair Drew				false

		375						LN		15		9		false		           9   and council members.  Again, for the record, this is Amy				false

		376						LN		15		10		false		          10   Moon, EFSEC staff member, providing a draft environmental				false

		377						LN		15		11		false		          11   impact statement or draft EIS update on the Horse Heaven				false

		378						LN		15		12		false		          12   Wind Project.				false

		379						LN		15		13		false		          13             The draft EIS was issued December 19th, 2022, for				false

		380						LN		15		14		false		          14   a 45-day comment period ending February 1st of 2023.  Copies				false

		381						LN		15		15		false		          15   of the draft EIS are posted for public review on the EFSEC				false

		382						LN		15		16		false		          16   public website, and electronic copies were distributed to				false

		383						LN		15		17		false		          17   public libraries near the Horse Heaven Wind Project -- or				false

		384						LN		15		18		false		          18   proposed project area, as well as to the Washington State				false

		385						LN		15		19		false		          19   Library in Olympia.  Public comments may be submitted to the				false

		386						LN		15		20		false		          20   EFSEC comment database or by US mail to the EFSEC mailing				false

		387						LN		15		21		false		          21   address.				false

		388						LN		15		22		false		          22             After the comment period closes, EFSEC will review				false

		389						LN		15		23		false		          23   the comments received to determine if additional information				false

		390						LN		15		24		false		          24   gathering and analysis should be done to improve the				false

		391						LN		15		25		false		          25   environmental analysis for the final EIS.				false
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		393						LN		16		1		false		           1             Does the council have any questions?				false

		394						LN		16		2		false		           2                  CHAIR DREW:  Any questions from council				false

		395						LN		16		3		false		           3   members?				false

		396						LN		16		4		false		           4                  SPEAKER BREWSTER:  Just a question of how				false

		397						LN		16		5		false		           5   long you expect it to take to go through the comments.				false

		398						LN		16		6		false		           6                  SPEAKER MOON:  Since we're still in the				false

		399						LN		16		7		false		           7   comment period and we don't know how many comments or the				false

		400						LN		16		8		false		           8   content of those comments, that's hard to answer.				false

		401						LN		16		9		false		           9             We do have a contractor that will be working on				false

		402						LN		16		10		false		          10   sorting the comments and tabulating and figuring out what				false

		403						LN		16		11		false		          11   topics we have and whether or not additional				false

		404						LN		16		12		false		          12   information-gathering will need to be done and what				false

		405						LN		16		13		false		          13   additional analysis will have to occur.				false

		406						LN		16		14		false		          14             Does that answer your question it's a vague				false

		407						LN		16		15		false		          15   answer, but...(pause).				false

		408						LN		16		16		false		          16                  SPEAKER BREWSTER:  I expect so.				false

		409						LN		16		17		false		          17                  SPEAKER MOON:  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		410						LN		16		18		false		          18                  CHAIR DREW:  Any other questions?				false

		411						LN		16		19		false		          19             Okay.  Thank you.				false

		412						LN		16		20		false		          20             Moving on to the Goose Prairie Solar Project,				false

		413						LN		16		21		false		          21   project updates.  Ms. Randolph.				false

		414						LN		16		22		false		          22                  SPEAKER RANDOLPH:  Good afternoon, Chair				false

		415						LN		16		23		false		          23   Drew, council members and staff.  For the record, this is				false

		416						LN		16		24		false		          24   Sara Randolph, the site specialist for the Goose Prairie				false
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		419						LN		17		1		false		           1             EFSEC staff received a draft of the initial site				false

		420						LN		17		2		false		           2   restoration plan, or ISRP, from the certificate holder,				false

		421						LN		17		3		false		           3   which is available to you in your packet.  Staff have				false

		422						LN		17		4		false		           4   reviewed the draft in consultation with our independent				false

		423						LN		17		5		false		           5   contractor and our attorney general and determined that the				false

		424						LN		17		6		false		           6   plan complies with the facility site certification				false

		425						LN		17		7		false		           7   agreement, or SCA, an agreement and regulation, excuse me,				false

		426						LN		17		8		false		           8   with Washington Administrative Code or WAC 463-72.				false

		427						LN		17		9		false		           9             The ISRP is required to be approved by the				false

		428						LN		17		10		false		          10   council, per WAC 463-72-030.  At this time, staff are				false

		429						LN		17		11		false		          11   recommending that the council vote to approve the ISRP as				false

		430						LN		17		12		false		          12   provided.				false

		431						LN		17		13		false		          13             EFSEC staff received two comments in the ISRP.				false

		432						LN		17		14		false		          14   Neither comment warranted a change in the draft ISRP as we				false

		433						LN		17		15		false		          15   received it.				false

		434						LN		17		16		false		          16             Are there any questions?				false

		435						LN		17		17		false		          17                  CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions for				false

		436						LN		17		18		false		          18   staff?				false

		437						LN		17		19		false		          19             Hearing none, I would ask the council:  Seeing and				false

		438						LN		17		20		false		          20   having a chance to review the ISRP or initial site				false

		439						LN		17		21		false		          21   restoration plan, is there a motion to approve that plan?				false

		440						LN		17		22		false		          22                  SPEAKER YOUNG:  Lenny Young, so move.				false

		441						LN		17		23		false		          23                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		442						LN		17		24		false		          24             Second?				false

		443						LN		17		25		false		          25                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Kate Kelly, second.				false
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		446						LN		18		2		false		           2             Are there any comments?				false

		447						LN		18		3		false		           3             The plan seems to me to be in good order and				false

		448						LN		18		4		false		           4   certainly covers the -- what is required both in our rules				false

		449						LN		18		5		false		           5   and in the site certification agreement, so I commend it to				false

		450						LN		18		6		false		           6   you.				false

		451						LN		18		7		false		           7             All those in favor of approving Goose Prairie				false

		452						LN		18		8		false		           8   Solar Initial Site Restoration Plan, please say "Aye."				false

		453						LN		18		9		false		           9                       (Aye.)				false

		454						LN		18		10		false		          10                  CHAIR DREW:  All those opposed?				false

		455						LN		18		11		false		          11             The plan is approved.  Thank you.				false

		456						LN		18		12		false		          12             Badger Mountain Project update.  Ms. Hafkemeyer.				false

		457						LN		18		13		false		          13                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you, Chair Drew.				false

		458						LN		18		14		false		          14   Good afternoon, council.				false

		459						LN		18		15		false		          15             Staff have been working with our contractor in the				false

		460						LN		18		16		false		          16   initial stages of drafting the environmental impact				false

		461						LN		18		17		false		          17   statement.  On December 27th, EFSEC staff sent a second data				false

		462						LN		18		18		false		          18   request to the applicant in support of the draft EIS.  Staff				false

		463						LN		18		19		false		          19   have also received additional studies from the applicant as				false

		464						LN		18		20		false		          20   coordinated with EFSEC staff and contracted agencies of				false

		465						LN		18		21		false		          21   expertise.				false

		466						LN		18		22		false		          22             Are there any questions?				false

		467						LN		18		23		false		          23                  CHAIR DREW:  Are there -- so this is the				false

		468						LN		18		24		false		          24   preparation of the draft EIS phase that we are in now for				false

		469						LN		18		25		false		          25   Badger Mountain.  Correct?				false
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		471						LN		19		1		false		           1                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Correct.  EFSEC staff				false

		472						LN		19		2		false		           2   are working with our contractor to draft the sections of the				false

		473						LN		19		3		false		           3   EIS, which will then be compiled for issuance later this				false

		474						LN		19		4		false		           4   year.				false

		475						LN		19		5		false		           5                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		476						LN		19		6		false		           6             Any other questions?  Okay.  Thank you.				false

		477						LN		19		7		false		           7             Whistling Ridge.  Ms. Hafkemeyer.				false

		478						LN		19		8		false		           8                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you, Chair Drew.				false

		479						LN		19		9		false		           9   Again, this is Amy Hafkemeyer, for the record.				false

		480						LN		19		10		false		          10             EFSEC staff are waiting for the certificate holder				false

		481						LN		19		11		false		          11   to submit the remaining materials for the FCA amendment				false

		482						LN		19		12		false		          12   request.  There are no further updates at this time.				false

		483						LN		19		13		false		          13                  CHAIR DREW:  On to the next project, High Top				false

		484						LN		19		14		false		          14   and Ostrea.  Ms. Hafkemeyer.				false

		485						LN		19		15		false		          15                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you.  I'd like to				false

		486						LN		19		16		false		          16   start by thanking the council for their attendance at the				false

		487						LN		19		17		false		          17   conditional use criteria meeting last Wednesday.  At that				false

		488						LN		19		18		false		          18   meeting there were four speakers.  EFSEC also received four				false

		489						LN		19		19		false		          19   written comments, one of which was received verbally, as				false

		490						LN		19		20		false		          20   well, and was one of the four commenters who spoke.				false

		491						LN		19		21		false		          21             These comments included recommendations on fire				false

		492						LN		19		22		false		          22   risk mitigation, recommendation on use of local labor, and				false

		493						LN		19		23		false		          23   concerns about use of agricultural land and environmental				false

		494						LN		19		24		false		          24   impacts and input on the EFSEC review process for this				false

		495						LN		19		25		false		          25   project.				false
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		497						LN		20		1		false		           1             I'd like to take a moment to review the timeline				false

		498						LN		20		2		false		           2   of this project to date, highlighting the opportunities that				false

		499						LN		20		3		false		           3   we have had so far for public comment.				false

		500						LN		20		4		false		           4             On April 7th, EFSEC received the application for				false

		501						LN		20		5		false		           5   site certification RASC, as well as the letter requesting				false

		502						LN		20		6		false		           6   expedited process.				false

		503						LN		20		7		false		           7             On June 1st, EFSEC held the initial public				false

		504						LN		20		8		false		           8   informational meeting to receive public comment, followed by				false

		505						LN		20		9		false		           9   the land use consistency hearing to receive testimony from				false

		506						LN		20		10		false		          10   the public.  Both of these meetings were held virtually.				false

		507						LN		20		11		false		          11             On July 19th, at the regularly scheduled council				false

		508						LN		20		12		false		          12   meeting, the council reviewed and approved an extension of				false

		509						LN		20		13		false		          13   the expedited process and determination by ten weeks.				false

		510						LN		20		14		false		          14             On October 18th, the council voted to approve				false

		511						LN		20		15		false		          15   Order 884 determining the proposal to be consistent with				false

		512						LN		20		16		false		          16   local land use ordinances in place at the time of				false

		513						LN		20		17		false		          17   application.  Public comment was taken during the meeting on				false

		514						LN		20		18		false		          18   this council action.				false

		515						LN		20		19		false		          19             On October 1st, EFSEC issued a SEPA threshold				false

		516						LN		20		20		false		          20   determination of mitigated determination of				false

		517						LN		20		21		false		          21   non-significance, or MDNS, followed by a 14-day public				false

		518						LN		20		22		false		          22   comment period.				false

		519						LN		20		23		false		          23             On October 28, EFSEC issued the revised MDNS.				false

		520						LN		20		24		false		          24             On November 2nd, the council went on a site tour				false

		521						LN		20		25		false		          25   and viewed the High Top and Ostrea sites from a nearby				false
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		523						LN		21		1		false		           1   vantage point at which the public was welcome to attend.				false

		524						LN		21		2		false		           2             With the land use consistency determination made				false

		525						LN		21		3		false		           3   by Order 884 and the revised MDNS issued on October 28th,				false

		526						LN		21		4		false		           4   the council voted to approve the applicant's expedited				false

		527						LN		21		5		false		           5   request by Order 885 on November 15th.  Council action was				false

		528						LN		21		6		false		           6   open for public comment ahead of the November council				false

		529						LN		21		7		false		           7   meeting.				false

		530						LN		21		8		false		           8             On November 29th, the council reviewed and				false

		531						LN		21		9		false		           9   approved the request to extend the timeline for the				false

		532						LN		21		10		false		          10   recommendation to February 22nd.  This action was open for				false

		533						LN		21		11		false		          11   public comment ahead of the council meeting.				false

		534						LN		21		12		false		          12             And then finally, last week, EFSEC held a				false

		535						LN		21		13		false		          13   conditional use criteria meeting to receive public comment				false

		536						LN		21		14		false		          14   on conditions related to the conditional use criteria as				false

		537						LN		21		15		false		          15   identified in the Yakima County Code that could then be				false

		538						LN		21		16		false		          16   included in a site certification agreement draft.				false

		539						LN		21		17		false		          17             Are there any questions from the council on the				false

		540						LN		21		18		false		          18   project activity to date?				false

		541						LN		21		19		false		          19                  CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions about				false

		542						LN		21		20		false		          20   the timeline and the actions the council has taken or public				false

		543						LN		21		21		false		          21   comment opportunities?  Go ahead.				false

		544						LN		21		22		false		          22                  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Thank you.				false

		545						LN		21		23		false		          23             In consideration of our review of the application,				false

		546						LN		21		24		false		          24   the issued MDNS, the determination of land use consistency				false

		547						LN		21		25		false		          25   and the granting of expedited process, staff would like to				false
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		549						LN		22		1		false		           1   recommend that the council direct staff to prepare an order				false

		550						LN		22		2		false		           2   with the recommendation of approval, a draft site				false

		551						LN		22		3		false		           3   certification agreement and associated documents to be				false

		552						LN		22		4		false		           4   reviewed and voted on at the February 15th council meeting.				false

		553						LN		22		5		false		           5                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  Are there any				false

		554						LN		22		6		false		           6   questions from council members?				false

		555						LN		22		7		false		           7             Is there a motion to direct the staff to draft an				false

		556						LN		22		8		false		           8   order recommending approval of the project for the February				false

		557						LN		22		9		false		           9   meeting?				false

		558						LN		22		10		false		          10                  SPEAKER LEVITT:  Eli Levitt, motion to direct				false

		559						LN		22		11		false		          11   the staff.				false

		560						LN		22		12		false		          12                  CHAIR DREW:  Second?				false

		561						LN		22		13		false		          13                  SPEAKER BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster, second.				false

		562						LN		22		14		false		          14                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		563						LN		22		15		false		          15             Are there any questions or comments on this				false

		564						LN		22		16		false		          16   motion?				false

		565						LN		22		17		false		          17             A lot of work has gone into reviewing the				false

		566						LN		22		18		false		          18   application, working with agencies who have had concerns on				false

		567						LN		22		19		false		          19   the project, that have been actually worked through in terms				false

		568						LN		22		20		false		          20   of the mitigation.  That has -- is all part of our package				false

		569						LN		22		21		false		          21   as we go forward, and I commend this project to you and				false

		570						LN		22		22		false		          22   encourage a yes vote.				false

		571						LN		22		23		false		          23             I will ask for a roll call vote.				false

		572						LN		22		24		false		          24             Clerk, will you call -- Ms. Grantham, will you				false

		573						LN		22		25		false		          25   call the roll for the EFSEC council, which is also the High				false
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		575						LN		23		1		false		           1   Top and Ostrea council.				false

		576						LN		23		2		false		           2                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Yes.  No problem.				false

		577						LN		23		3		false		           3             Chair Drew.				false

		578						LN		23		4		false		           4                  CHAIR DREW:  Aye.				false

		579						LN		23		5		false		           5                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Department of Commerce,				false

		580						LN		23		6		false		           6   Kate Kelly.				false

		581						LN		23		7		false		           7                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Aye.				false

		582						LN		23		8		false		           8                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish and				false

		583						LN		23		9		false		           9   Wildlife.				false

		584						LN		23		10		false		          10                  SPEAKER LIVINGSTON:  Aye.				false

		585						LN		23		11		false		          11                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Department of Ecology, Eli				false

		586						LN		23		12		false		          12   Levitt.				false

		587						LN		23		13		false		          13                  SPEAKER LEVITT:  Aye.				false

		588						LN		23		14		false		          14                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Utilities and				false

		589						LN		23		15		false		          15   Transportation Commission, Stacey Brewster.				false

		590						LN		23		16		false		          16                  SPEAKER BREWSTER:  Aye.				false

		591						LN		23		17		false		          17                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Department of Natural				false

		592						LN		23		18		false		          18   Resources, Lenny Young.				false

		593						LN		23		19		false		          19                  SPEAKER YOUNG:  Aye.				false

		594						LN		23		20		false		          20                  CHAIR DREW:  The motion is approved.				false

		595						LN		23		21		false		          21             I will point out to the public that the order will				false

		596						LN		23		22		false		          22   be drafted before the next council meeting, and you will				false

		597						LN		23		23		false		          23   have time to send in your comments to us about that draft				false

		598						LN		23		24		false		          24   order.  So that's the next step.  We haven't finalized the				false

		599						LN		23		25		false		          25   order, so the opportunity will be to comment on the proposed				false
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		601						LN		24		1		false		           1   order before the next meeting.  Thank you all.				false

		602						LN		24		2		false		           2             Moving on to the next item on our agenda, which is				false

		603						LN		24		3		false		           3   the Wautoma Solar Project update, Mr. Caputo.				false

		604						LN		24		4		false		           4                  SPEAKER CAPUTO:  Thank you, Chair Drew and				false

		605						LN		24		5		false		           5   council members.  For the record, my name is Lance Caputo.				false

		606						LN		24		6		false		           6   I'm the EFSEC staff assigned to the Wautoma Project.				false

		607						LN		24		7		false		           7             The state briefly -- we are in the stage of the				false

		608						LN		24		8		false		           8   process where we thoroughly review the application and then				false

		609						LN		24		9		false		           9   request supplemental data.				false

		610						LN		24		10		false		          10             In October of 2022, EFSEC sent the applicant a				false

		611						LN		24		11		false		          11   request for additional information.  We received the				false

		612						LN		24		12		false		          12   applicant's response to Data Request No. 1 in mid November.				false

		613						LN		24		13		false		          13             On the 27th of December, a second request for				false

		614						LN		24		14		false		          14   additional information was sent.  However, due to the				false

		615						LN		24		15		false		          15   holiday season, the applicant requested a 45-day period to				false

		616						LN		24		16		false		          16   respond.  We anticipate a reply by 15th of January 2023, and				false

		617						LN		24		17		false		          17   in the meantime, we are continuing to work with the				false

		618						LN		24		18		false		          18   applicant and our contractors on this project.				false

		619						LN		24		19		false		          19                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		620						LN		24		20		false		          20             So those data requests are to help with the staff				false

		621						LN		24		21		false		          21   completion of the determination of significance for the				false

		622						LN		24		22		false		          22   project.  Is that correct?				false

		623						LN		24		23		false		          23                  SPEAKER CAPUTO:  Correct.  They fill in				false

		624						LN		24		24		false		          24   missing gaps in the application so that we can make a proper				false

		625						LN		24		25		false		          25   SEPA determination.				false
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		627						LN		25		1		false		           1                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		628						LN		25		2		false		           2             So the next step will be the SEPA determination,				false

		629						LN		25		3		false		           3   which is made by Sonia Bumpus, our EFSEC director, and then				false

		630						LN		25		4		false		           4   from there that information will come back to the council.				false

		631						LN		25		5		false		           5                  SPEAKER CAPUTO:  Correct.				false

		632						LN		25		6		false		           6                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		633						LN		25		7		false		           7             Any questions?  And we also had a site visit of				false

		634						LN		25		8		false		           8   Wautoma as well, so I think that's helpful for us as we				false

		635						LN		25		9		false		           9   consider that project.				false

		636						LN		25		10		false		          10             Moving on to Hop Hill Solar, this is a new				false

		637						LN		25		11		false		          11   application that has just recently come to EFSEC.				false

		638						LN		25		12		false		          12             Ms. Hafkemeyer.				false

		639						LN		25		13		false		          13                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you.  For the				false

		640						LN		25		14		false		          14   record, this is Amy Hafkemeyer.				false

		641						LN		25		15		false		          15             On December 22nd, EFSEC staff received the				false

		642						LN		25		16		false		          16   application for the proposed Hop Hill Solar Facility.  The				false

		643						LN		25		17		false		          17   applicant is here today to give a brief introduction to the				false

		644						LN		25		18		false		          18   project, more detail on which will be provided at the public				false

		645						LN		25		19		false		          19   informational meeting.				false

		646						LN		25		20		false		          20             Staff are currently working to schedule this				false

		647						LN		25		21		false		          21   meeting and will update the council and the public as				false

		648						LN		25		22		false		          22   details become available.				false

		649						LN		25		23		false		          23             Are there any questions?				false

		650						LN		25		24		false		          24                  CHAIR DREW:  Any questions?				false

		651						LN		25		25		false		          25             Go ahead.				false
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		653						LN		26		1		false		           1                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Hearing none, I will				false

		654						LN		26		2		false		           2   hand the floor over to the applicant to introduce themselves				false

		655						LN		26		3		false		           3   to the council.				false

		656						LN		26		4		false		           4                  SPEAKER TYSON:  Thank you, Chair Drew,				false

		657						LN		26		5		false		           5   council members and staff.  So excited to come here and talk				false

		658						LN		26		6		false		           6   a little bit about the Hop Hill Project, but real quickly,				false

		659						LN		26		7		false		           7   just as a matter of introductions, my name's Chris				false

		660						LN		26		8		false		           8   Wissel-Tyson.  I lead development here for BrightNight in				false

		661						LN		26		9		false		           9   the Pacific Northwest.  I'm based just north of Seattle, and				false

		662						LN		26		10		false		          10   I'll let Ron introduce himself.				false

		663						LN		26		11		false		          11                  CHAIR DREW:  If you can spell your name				false

		664						LN		26		12		false		          12   for --				false

		665						LN		26		13		false		          13                  SPEAKER TYSON:  Sorry about that.				false

		666						LN		26		14		false		          14                  CHAIR DREW:   -- the court reporter.				false

		667						LN		26		15		false		          15                  SPEAKER TYSON:  C-H-R-I-S-T-O-P-H-E-R.  And I				false

		668						LN		26		16		false		          16   have a hyphenated last name, W-I-S-S-E-L dash T-Y-S-O-N.				false

		669						LN		26		17		false		          17                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.				false

		670						LN		26		18		false		          18                  SPEAKER KIECANA:  And I'm Ron Kiecana,				false

		671						LN		26		19		false		          19   K-I-E-C-A-N-A.  I'm the chief development officer with				false

		672						LN		26		20		false		          20   BrightNight Power.  And thank you, Chair Drew and EFSEC				false

		673						LN		26		21		false		          21   staff for the opportunity to introduce BrightNight and the				false

		674						LN		26		22		false		          22   Hop Hill Project today.				false

		675						LN		26		23		false		          23                  SPEAKER TYSON:  We'll move quickly to the				false

		676						LN		26		24		false		          24   next slide and just a little background behind who we are				false
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		679						LN		27		1		false		           1             We're an independent power producer.  I'd say				false

		680						LN		27		2		false		           2   young in current formation, we were formed in 2018, but I'd				false

		681						LN		27		3		false		           3   say old in pedigree and experience amongst the team.  We are				false

		682						LN		27		4		false		           4   the next iteration of a company that was started by Martin				false

		683						LN		27		5		false		           5   Hermann, called 8minutenergy.  8minute, from around 2010 to				false

		684						LN		27		6		false		           6   2018, was a large private solar developer in the United				false

		685						LN		27		7		false		           7   States and really changed the way we looked at large				false

		686						LN		27		8		false		           8   utility-scale solar projects.  He built projects in Southern				false

		687						LN		27		9		false		           9   California and Nevada and Arizona that set price records at				false

		688						LN		27		10		false		          10   the time and really showed that large solar projects can be				false

		689						LN		27		11		false		          11   competitive with fossil fuel projects.				false

		690						LN		27		12		false		          12             But around 2017-2018, he started to come to the				false

		691						LN		27		13		false		          13   realization that if we're going to truly decarbonize the				false

		692						LN		27		14		false		          14   grid, we're going to have to move from as available				false

		693						LN		27		15		false		          15   renewable technology, when wind blows or when it's sunny or				false

		694						LN		27		16		false		          16   when the hydro's running with a large runoff in the spring,				false

		695						LN		27		17		false		          17   to something that's more dispatchable, like a traditional				false

		696						LN		27		18		false		          18   power plant.  And that's why he formed BrightNight, and we				false

		697						LN		27		19		false		          19   are a purpose-built team for that goal.				false

		698						LN		27		20		false		          20             I'll get a little bit into that next slide, but				false

		699						LN		27		21		false		          21   just real quick, we have a US portfolio of around 21				false

		700						LN		27		22		false		          22   gigawatts, two gigawatts in the Asia Pacific.  We have two				false

		701						LN		27		23		false		          23   financial partners, CPPIB, the Canadian pension fund, is a				false

		702						LN		27		24		false		          24   partner in all of our western projects, and we also have				false

		703						LN		27		25		false		          25   GIP, Global Infrastructure Partners, which is one of the				false
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		705						LN		28		1		false		           1   largest infrastructure funds in the world, and they support				false

		706						LN		28		2		false		           2   our US portfolio.				false

		707						LN		28		3		false		           3             One point of clarification, we are an IDP.  We				false

		708						LN		28		4		false		           4   intend to develop, build and own these projects for up to 40				false

		709						LN		28		5		false		           5   to 50 years.  We are not trying to sell the project before				false

		710						LN		28		6		false		           6   or right after construction.  That's not how we're built.				false

		711						LN		28		7		false		           7   So I think it does change, a little bit, how we do business				false

		712						LN		28		8		false		           8   as a company.  Stakeholders, neighbor relationships, just				false

		713						LN		28		9		false		           9   the design of the plants and thinking about our rate payers				false

		714						LN		28		10		false		          10   and customers, us, as power buyers, is very important to us				false

		715						LN		28		11		false		          11   when we have that kind of -- you want to say something?				false

		716						LN		28		12		false		          12             I was just going to check on the next part here.				false

		717						LN		28		13		false		          13   And just moving along, we're now a team of about 110 people,				false

		718						LN		28		14		false		          14   with operations here in the US, as well as over in Asia				false

		719						LN		28		15		false		          15   Pacific.  85 people are located here in the US, and we have				false

		720						LN		28		16		false		          16   a strong team here in the Northwest.  They're located here;				false

		721						LN		28		17		false		          17   six people reside here in the Northwest.  We're a big				false

		722						LN		28		18		false		          18   believer in being very close to the customers and to the				false

		723						LN		28		19		false		          19   markets which we aspire to be a part of in the future.				false

		724						LN		28		20		false		          20             If we can move on to the next slide here, I just				false

		725						LN		28		21		false		          21   want to touch on -- this is something that is very different				false

		726						LN		28		22		false		          22   and is part of BrightNight.  And this is a proprietary				false

		727						LN		28		23		false		          23   software platform that we have developed here at				false

		728						LN		28		24		false		          24   BrightNight, and this supports our focus on structuring				false

		729						LN		28		25		false		          25   clean power products for our customer.				false
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		731						LN		29		1		false		           1             And so as Chris mentioned, there is a difference				false

		732						LN		29		2		false		           2   between clean energy and clean power.  You're going to get				false

		733						LN		29		3		false		           3   clean energy when the sun is shining, wind is blowing.  We				false

		734						LN		29		4		false		           4   focus on clean power and providing that power when the				false

		735						LN		29		5		false		           5   customer really values it and needs it most.  And it can				false

		736						LN		29		6		false		           6   most be beneficial from an operations perspective for the				false

		737						LN		29		7		false		           7   customer and for the transmission system.				false

		738						LN		29		8		false		           8             So our PowerAlpha platform, very quickly, is able				false

		739						LN		29		9		false		           9   to very quickly analyze immense amounts of data across				false

		740						LN		29		10		false		          10   intermittent resources and identify where the gaps are.  So				false

		741						LN		29		11		false		          11   we look for opportunities to combine intermittent resources				false

		742						LN		29		12		false		          12   to provide structured, more valuable clean power products to				false

		743						LN		29		13		false		          13   customers.				false

		744						LN		29		14		false		          14             Sometimes this does involve using energy storage.				false

		745						LN		29		15		false		          15   Other times it may involve just layering in more				false

		746						LN		29		16		false		          16   intermittent energy, such as wind, solar, possibly even				false

		747						LN		29		17		false		          17   hydro.  So again, very powerful tool core to BrightNight and				false

		748						LN		29		18		false		          18   a big part of what we do here as a team here in the US.				false

		749						LN		29		19		false		          19                  SPEAKER TYSON:  Two slides, I'll talk a				false

		750						LN		29		20		false		          20   little bit about the Hop Hill Energy Project.  This is a PVS				false

		751						LN		29		21		false		          21   500-megawatt project in Benton County, Washington, Central				false

		752						LN		29		22		false		          22   Washington, around 5,000 acres within the fence line.  And				false

		753						LN		29		23		false		          23   we actually have three different potential points of				false

		754						LN		29		24		false		          24   interconnect and interconnect applications with the EPA.				false

		755						LN		29		25		false		          25             We have four main goals with the Hop Hill Project.				false

		756						PG		30		0		false		page 30				false

		757						LN		30		1		false		           1   One is to provide low-cost and reliable energy in an area				false

		758						LN		30		2		false		           2   that compliments already-existing resources.  And so that's				false

		759						LN		30		3		false		           3   the Columbia River dams and what's really called the				false

		760						LN		30		4		false		           4   Northwest hub, as well as other resources, such as nuclear,				false

		761						LN		30		5		false		           5   to help meet growing needs in the region as well as the				false

		762						LN		30		6		false		           6   state.				false

		763						LN		30		7		false		           7             2.  We wanted to avoid expensive and lengthy				false

		764						LN		30		8		false		           8   infrastructure projects.  I'm sure you guys know, but we are				false

		765						LN		30		9		false		           9   extremely constrained here in Washington and Oregon as well,				false

		766						LN		30		10		false		          10   mostly around the BPA system.  There's just no transmission				false

		767						LN		30		11		false		          11   left to bring a lot of new projects online to meet our				false

		768						LN		30		12		false		          12   renewable goals.				false

		769						LN		30		13		false		          13             If you put, for example, a project maybe closer to				false

		770						LN		30		14		false		          14   Spokane, Eastern Washington, you can trigger upgrades on the				false

		771						LN		30		15		false		          15   east and west side of Washington, as well as Portland and				false

		772						LN		30		16		false		          16   Eastern Oregon.  And those upgrades can take 10 to 15 years,				false

		773						LN		30		17		false		          17   and it's a big impact on everyone that's experiencing those				false

		774						LN		30		18		false		          18   upgrades.				false

		775						LN		30		19		false		          19             So we looked across Washington's BPA system and				false

		776						LN		30		20		false		          20   really tried to find a location where we can inject a large				false

		777						LN		30		21		false		          21   amount of renewable power without triggering those long				false

		778						LN		30		22		false		          22   upgrades, which allows us to come online in two to three				false

		779						LN		30		23		false		          23   years and deliver to customers and help meet renewable goals				false

		780						LN		30		24		false		          24   and not trigger all these projects across multiple states.				false

		781						LN		30		25		false		          25             No. 3, minimizing natural resource impacts while				false

		782						PG		31		0		false		page 31				false

		783						LN		31		1		false		           1   maximizing community benefits.  So these projects bring a				false

		784						LN		31		2		false		           2   lot of tax revenue to communities, but we heard, kind of,				false

		785						LN		31		3		false		           3   three main concerns, and we worked with -- we've been				false

		786						LN		31		4		false		           4   talking to Benton County over two-and-a-half years.  I mean,				false

		787						LN		31		5		false		           5   one is visual, and the other one is impact to productive				false

		788						LN		31		6		false		           6   land, and a third is pristine habitat, impact to its				false

		789						LN		31		7		false		           7   pristine habitat.				false

		790						LN		31		8		false		           8             So really tried to find a site that was a happy				false

		791						LN		31		9		false		           9   medium between all these impacts.  We wanted to avoid any				false

		792						LN		31		10		false		          10   irrigated land.  We also wanted to avoid those higher value				false

		793						LN		31		11		false		          11   habitat areas and wanted to seat the project in a location				false

		794						LN		31		12		false		          12   in which it was shielded from the rest of the community as				false

		795						LN		31		13		false		          13   much as we could.  That's how we picked this site just south				false

		796						LN		31		14		false		          14   of Rattlesnake Hill, and it's on low-productivity grazing				false

		797						LN		31		15		false		          15   land.				false

		798						LN		31		16		false		          16             No. 4.  One thing that's very important to us is				false

		799						LN		31		17		false		          17   co-use, and we'll talk about this in two slides.  But we				false

		800						LN		31		18		false		          18   wanted to maintain the productive nature of the land.  Even				false

		801						LN		31		19		false		          19   though this is low productivity grazing land, we really				false

		802						LN		31		20		false		          20   think that we can work in concert with traditional				false

		803						LN		31		21		false		          21   agricultural practices.				false

		804						LN		31		22		false		          22             So for this site we are doing sheep grazing across				false

		805						LN		31		23		false		          23   the entire project, and it will probably be the largest				false

		806						LN		31		24		false		          24   project, we think, in the Pacific Northwest to pursue this				false

		807						LN		31		25		false		          25   type of agrivoltaics.				false

		808						PG		32		0		false		page 32				false

		809						LN		32		1		false		           1             I'll talk about that.  And if we can switch, go				false

		810						LN		32		2		false		           2   one more slide.				false

		811						LN		32		3		false		           3             Just real quick, on a little bit more about the				false

		812						LN		32		4		false		           4   micrositing of the project.  You guys understand, I think,				false

		813						LN		32		5		false		           5   why we came to this area.  And if you look on the south or				false

		814						LN		32		6		false		           6   bottom of your screen there, you can see the white areas are				false

		815						LN		32		7		false		           7   solar panels, so there's a lot of design considerations once				false

		816						LN		32		8		false		           8   we narrowed into this site.  One was natural resources.				false

		817						LN		32		9		false		           9             We actually talk a lot to WDFW.  One, about				false

		818						LN		32		10		false		          10   habitat that borders, I'd say, to the north of the site, of				false

		819						LN		32		11		false		          11   actual species that they were concerned about.  In this				false

		820						LN		32		12		false		          12   case, it was the Ferruginous Hawk, and so we actually moved				false

		821						LN		32		13		false		          13   all our panels from the west to the east to try to avoid the				false

		822						LN		32		14		false		          14   Ferruginous Hawk's prey habitat in that area.				false

		823						LN		32		15		false		          15             Culture and archaeological, we did transect				false

		824						LN		32		16		false		          16   surveys and we've hired, we think, very good local				false

		825						LN		32		17		false		          17   consultants that understand our stakeholders and really				false

		826						LN		32		18		false		          18   helped in that stakeholder outreach.				false

		827						LN		32		19		false		          19             Water resources, there is some water in the draws				false

		828						LN		32		20		false		          20   between the sites, but we'll really be able to avoid those				false

		829						LN		32		21		false		          21   impacts through our crossings.				false

		830						LN		32		22		false		          22             Visual impact, which I already talked about a				false

		831						LN		32		23		false		          23   little bit, and then topography and existing agricultural				false

		832						LN		32		24		false		          24   operations.				false

		833						LN		32		25		false		          25             So with all these design considerations or				false

		834						PG		33		0		false		page 33				false

		835						LN		33		1		false		           1   constraints, we came up with this layout which will be				false

		836						LN		33		2		false		           2   included in our permit.				false

		837						LN		33		3		false		           3             And I'll move to the next slide.  I know we don't				false

		838						LN		33		4		false		           4   have a lot of time.				false

		839						LN		33		5		false		           5             This is one thing I really wanted to talk about.				false

		840						LN		33		6		false		           6   I mean, because we really think that the industry -- this is				false

		841						LN		33		7		false		           7   where the industry needs to go, and it really can be a part				false

		842						LN		33		8		false		           8   of agriculture.  So we're really focused on agrivoltaics in				false

		843						LN		33		9		false		           9   the company.  Our owner, Martin, has two regenerative farms.				false

		844						LN		33		10		false		          10   It's a big focus of ours, and we think this is the way we're				false

		845						LN		33		11		false		          11   going to have to do business and really work in a symbiotic				false

		846						LN		33		12		false		          12   relationship in the future.				false

		847						LN		33		13		false		          13             There's an agricultural Oregon State professor				false

		848						LN		33		14		false		          14   that said:  Solar panels are farm equipment and the sun is a				false

		849						LN		33		15		false		          15   farm resource.				false

		850						LN		33		16		false		          16             We like that.  We think that's a good goal and				false

		851						LN		33		17		false		          17   maybe where we can move, but we do think we already				false

		852						LN		33		18		false		          18   complement existing traditional ag practices.  And so for				false

		853						LN		33		19		false		          19   this site, we're pursuing sheep grazing.  And there's really				false

		854						LN		33		20		false		          20   good research, locally, about the advantages of doing that.				false

		855						LN		33		21		false		          21             There's a study, specifically, on sheep grazing,				false

		856						LN		33		22		false		          22   same type of landscape and low-productivity grazing land.				false

		857						LN		33		23		false		          23   They see up to about a 300 percent improvement in water				false

		858						LN		33		24		false		          24   conservation just by the shading.  By doing that shading you				false

		859						LN		33		25		false		          25   get twice the plant growth.  And it's because on the eastern				false

		860						PG		34		0		false		page 34				false

		861						LN		34		1		false		           1   side of the Cascades here, we are water limited, not sun or				false

		862						LN		34		2		false		           2   photon limited.  And what does that equal?  Actually, about				false

		863						LN		34		3		false		           3   a ten percent increase in care and capacity of sheep on the				false

		864						LN		34		4		false		           4   site.				false

		865						LN		34		5		false		           5             So not only does this work well with an existing				false

		866						LN		34		6		false		           6   ag practice, but actually improves it.  So we really think				false

		867						LN		34		7		false		           7   it's a great model going forward.				false

		868						LN		34		8		false		           8             We're also very excited; this was actually -- this				false

		869						LN		34		9		false		           9   property was an historic sheep operation since the landowner				false

		870						LN		34		10		false		          10   originally homesteaded the land and expanded it, they raised				false

		871						LN		34		11		false		          11   sheep for years and ran them up into the mountains.  There				false

		872						LN		34		12		false		          12   was, I'd say, a little bit of a crash in the wool market a				false

		873						LN		34		13		false		          13   couple decades ago, and now trends are changing again and				false

		874						LN		34		14		false		          14   it's starting to make more sense.				false

		875						LN		34		15		false		          15             So we're really excited to bring this sheep				false

		876						LN		34		16		false		          16   operation back to the property.  And he will actually own				false

		877						LN		34		17		false		          17   and run this, so it's quite exciting.				false

		878						LN		34		18		false		          18             And lastly, we want to support agrivoltaics in the				false

		879						LN		34		19		false		          19   future.  I mean, this isn't just us in this project.  We're				false

		880						LN		34		20		false		          20   committed to really supporting the industry and making sure				false

		881						LN		34		21		false		          21   that we're doing business in a way that works well with our				false

		882						LN		34		22		false		          22   local communities.				false

		883						LN		34		23		false		          23             So we're actually funding a research project				false

		884						LN		34		24		false		          24   through a local university.  We'll announce it soon, but				false

		885						LN		34		25		false		          25   it's really on the impact of co-use on this project and				false

		886						PG		35		0		false		page 35				false

		887						LN		35		1		false		           1   actually nutrient transport.  Without getting into details,				false

		888						LN		35		2		false		           2   sheep like to sit under the panels, and so they do certain				false

		889						LN		35		3		false		           3   things there.  So a lot of nutrients is concentrated under				false

		890						LN		35		4		false		           4   those panels, and there's a lot of interest on how that				false

		891						LN		35		5		false		           5   nutrient flows throughout the property.				false

		892						LN		35		6		false		           6             That's about it.  We do have a quick video, if we				false

		893						LN		35		7		false		           7   do have time, about the project as well.				false

		894						LN		35		8		false		           8                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  I just wanted to add one more				false

		895						LN		35		9		false		           9   thing.  We do have a power sale commitment in place for 280				false

		896						LN		35		10		false		          10   megawatts of the 500 megawatts that's being shown here in				false

		897						LN		35		11		false		          11   the application, and that power will -- clean energy power				false

		898						LN		35		12		false		          12   will be used for future Washington State clean power				false

		899						LN		35		13		false		          13   requirements.				false

		900						LN		35		14		false		          14                       (Video being played.  No audio)				false

		901						LN		35		15		false		          15                  CHAIR DREW:  Can we pause for a minute?  I'm				false

		902						LN		35		16		false		          16   seeing messages that there is not audio for those who are				false

		903						LN		35		17		false		          17   not in this room.				false

		904						LN		35		18		false		          18                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Chair Drew, we may need to				false

		905						LN		35		19		false		          19   make the video available afterwards.  I believe there may be				false

		906						LN		35		20		false		          20   an issue with playing video through Teams, where sound				false

		907						LN		35		21		false		          21   doesn't come through.				false

		908						LN		35		22		false		          22                  CHAIR DREW:  We apologize to everyone who is				false

		909						LN		35		23		false		          23   participating in this meeting.  There is a glitch that we				false

		910						LN		35		24		false		          24   cannot play the audio from the video.  So I think what I				false

		911						LN		35		25		false		          25   will do is pause here and ask council members:  Is that the				false

		912						PG		36		0		false		page 36				false

		913						LN		36		1		false		           1   end of your presentation?				false

		914						LN		36		2		false		           2             And we'll watch it afterwards, and we'll ask				false

		915						LN		36		3		false		           3   others, also, to watch it afterwards, after we conclude our				false

		916						LN		36		4		false		           4   meeting today, so we don't spend the time looking at a video				false

		917						LN		36		5		false		           5   that no one else can see -- I mean, hear.				false

		918						LN		36		6		false		           6             So are there questions from council members?  Go				false

		919						LN		36		7		false		           7   ahead, Ms. Kelly.				false

		920						LN		36		8		false		           8                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Thank you, Chair Drew.				false

		921						LN		36		9		false		           9             This is Kate Kelly from the Department of				false

		922						LN		36		10		false		          10   Commerce.  I just have a question for the proponents.  I				false

		923						LN		36		11		false		          11   thought I saw on some of the materials that this was going				false

		924						LN		36		12		false		          12   to be -- that 5,000 acres was going to be fenced in.  Is				false

		925						LN		36		13		false		          13   that correct?				false

		926						LN		36		14		false		          14                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  Yes, that is correct.				false

		927						LN		36		15		false		          15                  SPEAKER KELLY:  So that's a lot -- a lot of				false

		928						LN		36		16		false		          16   fence.  Is it -- what's the implications on wildlife?				false

		929						LN		36		17		false		          17                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  Yeah.  I mean, so we were				false

		930						LN		36		18		false		          18   working on a number of things I kind of talked about on the				false

		931						LN		36		19		false		          19   constraint side, you know.  We were trying to move away from				false

		932						LN		36		20		false		          20   where we thought there was valuable prey habitat and start				false

		933						LN		36		21		false		          21   trying to avoid impacts on wildlife.				false

		934						LN		36		22		false		          22             Currently, the site is grazed by couple hundred				false

		935						LN		36		23		false		          23   cattle.  So it's pretty well-impacted.  But there is				false

		936						LN		36		24		false		          24   wildlife, I'd say especially on the northern edge.  So we				false

		937						LN		36		25		false		          25   tried to pull the site down from that and as well as looked				false

		938						PG		37		0		false		page 37				false

		939						LN		37		1		false		           1   at -- a lot of our other projects, we looked at migration				false

		940						LN		37		2		false		           2   corridors and trying not to create a bottleneck in our				false

		941						LN		37		3		false		           3   projects.				false

		942						LN		37		4		false		           4             But we also have this, you know, competing				false

		943						LN		37		5		false		           5   operation here with sheep, and we do need to protect them				false

		944						LN		37		6		false		           6   from predation.  So we are going to work with the landowner				false

		945						LN		37		7		false		           7   through this whole process to really understand where we				false

		946						LN		37		8		false		           8   need fencing and not.				false

		947						LN		37		9		false		           9             We think there is some more fingers and, kind of,				false

		948						LN		37		10		false		          10   migration pathways we can add to the site, but really, our				false

		949						LN		37		11		false		          11   main goal was to try to avoid where we surveilled wildlife				false

		950						LN		37		12		false		          12   or knew there was historic presence of wildlife or their				false

		951						LN		37		13		false		          13   prey habitat.  So we tried to move away from that, get more				false

		952						LN		37		14		false		          14   into those grazing areas.				false

		953						LN		37		15		false		          15                  SPEAKER KELLY:  And so just to come from --				false

		954						LN		37		16		false		          16   the sheep would graze there year-round and not go up into				false

		955						LN		37		17		false		          17   the hills.				false

		956						LN		37		18		false		          18                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  Yes.  So they would graze the				false

		957						LN		37		19		false		          19   project year-round, mostly -- I mean, the grazing season is				false

		958						LN		37		20		false		          20   spring, summer and then a little bit of fall, and then we				false

		959						LN		37		21		false		          21   will have to supplement their feed in the winter.				false

		960						LN		37		22		false		          22                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Thank you.				false

		961						LN		37		23		false		          23                  CHAIR DREW:  And with some of our projects to				false

		962						LN		37		24		false		          24   follow on that theme, the fencing is raised a little bit to				false

		963						LN		37		25		false		          25   allow for the smaller critters.				false

		964						PG		38		0		false		page 38				false

		965						LN		38		1		false		           1                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  Absolutely.  In Idaho we've				false

		966						LN		38		2		false		           2   been working with BLM on some sage grouse-friendly fencing,				false

		967						LN		38		3		false		           3   essentially allow them -- that's kind of a standard we				false

		968						LN		38		4		false		           4   wanted for these projects.				false

		969						LN		38		5		false		           5             We are faced with an interesting situation here,				false

		970						LN		38		6		false		           6   where there are coyotes and we have sheep.  So we're working				false

		971						LN		38		7		false		           7   with the landowner on, you know, What does that look like?				false

		972						LN		38		8		false		           8   Can we have wildlife-friendly fencing?  Can we move that				false

		973						LN		38		9		false		           9   fencing?  So that is something we are still working on the				false

		974						LN		38		10		false		          10   project.  But as far as the application, we kind of want to				false

		975						LN		38		11		false		          11   take the worst-case scenario and say, we're putting this				false

		976						LN		38		12		false		          12   fencing down to the ground, and then we're going to work and				false

		977						LN		38		13		false		          13   see what we can do.				false

		978						LN		38		14		false		          14                  CHAIR DREW:  Through the comments and issues				false

		979						LN		38		15		false		          15   that might arise and work with that.				false

		980						LN		38		16		false		          16                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  Yep.				false

		981						LN		38		17		false		          17                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  Are there additional				false

		982						LN		38		18		false		          18   questions from council members?				false

		983						LN		38		19		false		          19             I wondered if you could share with us who is the				false

		984						LN		38		20		false		          20   power off-taker.				false

		985						LN		38		21		false		          21                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  Yeah, I'm sorry.  That's not				false

		986						LN		38		22		false		          22   public yet.				false

		987						LN		38		23		false		          23                  CHAIR DREW:  Okay.				false

		988						LN		38		24		false		          24                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  It will be sometime here in				false

		989						LN		38		25		false		          25   2023.				false

		990						PG		39		0		false		page 39				false

		991						LN		39		1		false		           1                  CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Appreciate that.				false

		992						LN		39		2		false		           2   Understand.				false

		993						LN		39		3		false		           3             Thank you for your presentation.  We look forward				false

		994						LN		39		4		false		           4   to viewing the video and also to hearing more about this				false

		995						LN		39		5		false		           5   project as we review your application.				false

		996						LN		39		6		false		           6             Moving into our good of the order and the next				false

		997						LN		39		7		false		           7   item before us is the third quarter cost allocation.				false

		998						LN		39		8		false		           8             Ms. Bumpus.				false

		999						LN		39		9		false		           9                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Chair Drew, Ms. Bumpus				false

		1000						LN		39		10		false		          10   asked that I cover the cost allocation for the council				false

		1001						LN		39		11		false		          11   meeting this afternoon.				false

		1002						LN		39		12		false		          12                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  I was actually				false

		1003						LN		39		13		false		          13   reading my agenda.  Go ahead, Ms. Hafkemeyer.				false

		1004						LN		39		14		false		          14                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you.				false

		1005						LN		39		15		false		          15             So on the screen you'll see the cost allocation				false

		1006						LN		39		16		false		          16   for third quarter, which is January 1st through March 30th,				false

		1007						LN		39		17		false		          17   2023, and the allocation is as follows:				false

		1008						LN		39		18		false		          18             Kittitas Wind Valley -- Kittitas Valley Wind Power				false

		1009						LN		39		19		false		          19   project, four percent.				false

		1010						LN		39		20		false		          20             Wild Horse Wind, four percent.				false

		1011						LN		39		21		false		          21             Columbia Generating Station, 21 percent.				false

		1012						LN		39		22		false		          22             Columbia Solar, four percent.				false

		1013						LN		39		23		false		          23             WNP-1, three percent.				false

		1014						LN		39		24		false		          24             Whistling Ridge Energy, three percent.				false

		1015						LN		39		25		false		          25             Grays Harbor 1 and 2, eight percent.				false

		1016						PG		40		0		false		page 40				false

		1017						LN		40		1		false		           1             Chehalis Generation Facility, seven percent.				false

		1018						LN		40		2		false		           2             Desert Claim Wind, three percent.				false

		1019						LN		40		3		false		           3             Goose Prairie Solar, four percent.				false
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           1                  BE IT REMEMBERED that on Wednesday,



           2   January 18, 2023, 1:30 p.m., the following proceedings were



           3   held before Ann Marie Allison, Certified Court Reporter



           4   residing in Pierce County, Washington.



           5                       (All parties present via Teams)



           6



           7           ***  MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 1:30 p.m.  ***



           8



           9                  CHAIR DREW:  Good afternoon.  This is



          10   Kathleen Drew, chair of the Energy Facility Site Evaluation



          11   Counsel, bringing our meeting to order.



          12             We have had some feedback -- (No audio.)



          13                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Start from the beginning,



          14   Chair Drew.  For some reason it got muted from our sides.



          15                  CHAIR DREW:  Certainly.



          16                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Apologies.



          17                  CHAIR DREW:  Good afternoon, this is Kathleen



          18   Drew, chair of the Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council,



          19   calling to order our January monthly meeting.



          20             All of those of you who have microphones out there



          21   that may be open, please check your microphones -- we're



          22   getting some feedback in the room -- and make sure that they



          23   are off.



          24             Ms. Grantham, will you please call the roll?



          25                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Certainly.
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           1             Department of Commerce.



           2                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Kate Kelly present.



           3                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Department of Ecology.



           4                  SPEAKER LEVITT:  Eli Levitt present.



           5                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish and



           6   Wildlife.



           7                  SPEAKER LIVINGSTON:  Mike Livingston present.



           8                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Department of Natural



           9   Resources.



          10                  SPEAKER YOUNG:  Lenny Young present.



          11                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Utilities and



          12   Transportation Commission.



          13                  SPEAKER BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster present.



          14                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Local government and



          15   optional state agencies for the Horse Heaven Project,



          16   Department of Agriculture.



          17                  SPEAKER SANDISON:  Derek Sandison present.



          18                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Benton County, Ed Brost.



          19                  SPEAKER BROST:  I'm here.



          20                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  For the Badger Mountain



          21   Project, Douglas County.



          22                       (No response)



          23                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  For the Wautoma Solar



          24   Project for Benton County, Dave Sharp.



          25                       (No response)
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           1                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Washington State



           2   Department of Transportation.



           3                       (No response)



           4                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  The Assistant Attorney



           5   General.



           6                  SPEAKER THOMPSON:  This is John Thompson,



           7   Assistant Attorney General.



           8                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Thank you.



           9             Administrative law judges, Adam Torem.



          10                  JUDGE TOREM:  This is Judge Torem.  I'm here.



          11                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Laura Bradley.



          12                  JUDGE BRADLEY:  This is Judge Bradley; I'm



          13   here.  Also, I've heard from Judge Gerard that he's having



          14   difficulty joining the meeting, so he may not be with us



          15   yet.



          16                  JUDGE GERARD:  I'm in now.  Thank you.



          17                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Perfect.  Thank you.  Dan



          18   Gerard is present.  Thank you.



          19             For EFSEC staff, Sonia Bumpus.



          20                       (No response)



          21                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Amy Hafkemeyer.



          22                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Amy Hafkemeyer present.



          23                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Amy Moon.



          24                  SPEAKER MOON:  Amy Moon present.



          25                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Patty Betts.
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           1                       (No response)



           2                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Stew Henderson.



           3                       (No response)



           4                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Joan Owens.



           5                  SPEAKER J. OWENS:  Present.



           6                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Dave Walker.



           7                  SPEAKER WALKER:  Dave Walker present.



           8                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Sonya Skavland.



           9                  SPEAKER SKAVLAND:  Sonya Skavland present.



          10                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Lisa Masengale.



          11                  SPEAKER MASENGALE:  Lisa Masengale present.



          12                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Sara Randolph.



          13                  SPEAKER RANDOLPH:  Sara Randolph present.



          14                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Sean Greene.



          15                       (No response)



          16                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Lance Caputo.



          17                  SPEAKER CAPUTO:  Lance Caputo present.



          18                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  John Barnes.



          19                  SPEAKER BARNES:  John Barnes present.



          20                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Osta Davis.



          21                  SPEAKER DAVIS:  Osta Davis --



          22                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Joanne Snarski.



          23                  SPEAKER SNARSKI:  Present.



          24                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  For the operational



          25   updates, Kittitas Valley Wind Project.

�



                                                                           7







           1                  SPEAKER MELBARDIS:  Eric Melbardis present.



           2                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Wild Horse Wind Power



           3   Project.



           4                  SPEAKER GALBRAITH:  Jennifer Galbraith



           5   present.



           6                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Grays Harbor Energy



           7   Center.



           8                  SPEAKER SHERIN:  Chris Sherin present.



           9                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Chehalis Generation



          10   Facility.



          11                  SPEAKER ADAMS:  Mike Adams present.



          12                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Columbia Generating



          13   Station.



          14                  SPEAKER SCHMIDT:  Marshall Schmidt present.



          15                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Columbia Solar.



          16                  SPEAKER HURD:  Owen Hurd present.



          17                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  And do we have someone



          18   here for the counsel for the environment?



          19                       (No response)



          20             Hearing none, Chair, there is a quorum for the



          21   regular counsel, the Horse Heaven counsel and the Wautoma



          22   counsel.  Thank you.



          23                  SPEAKER BREWSTER:  This is Stacey Brewster.



          24   I move that we approve the November monthly meeting minutes.



          25                  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Second.
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           1                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Kate Kelly, second.



           2                       (No audio)



           3                  CHAIR DREW:  I'm sorry.  I'll start again.



           4             I have two changes to make.  The first one is on



           5   page 8, line 21.  The word "professional" should be



           6   "facility," and on page 52, line 3, before the word "walk,"



           7   it should say "I will."



           8             Are there any other changes for the November



           9   monthly meeting minutes?



          10                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Chair Drew, this is Kate



          11   Kelly.  Can you hear me?



          12                  CHAIR DREW:  Yes.  Go ahead.



          13                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Okay.  We're just having a



          14   little trouble hearing you sometimes.



          15             I have two changes on page 21 for some reason.



          16   The top line, Line No. 1, "effective" should be "executive."



          17                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          18                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Line 14, the word "quart"



          19   should be "short."



          20                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          21                  SPEAKER KELLY:  You're welcome.



          22                  CHAIR DREW:  Are there any other changes for



          23   the monthly meeting minutes?



          24             Hearing none, all those in favor of the November



          25   monthly meeting minutes as amended, please say "Aye."
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           1                       (Aye.)



           2                  CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?



           3             The minutes are amended.



           4             I'm going to take a step backwards and ask for



           5   approval of adopting the agenda for today's meeting.  Is



           6   there a motion to approve the agenda for today's meeting?



           7                  SPEAKER YOUNG:  Lenny Young, so move.



           8                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



           9                  SPEAKER BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster, second.



          10                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  All those in favor



          11   of approving the agenda for today, please say "Aye."



          12                       (Aye.)



          13             All those opposed?



          14             The agenda is approved.



          15             Okay.  Now moving on to the second set of minutes,



          16   as I get there on my screen.  Is there a motion to approve



          17   the minutes for the November 29th special meeting?



          18                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Kate Kelly, move to approve



          19   the minutes.



          20                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  Second?



          21                  SPEAKER LEVITT:  Eli Levitt, second.



          22                  CHAIR DREW:  Are there any changes to that



          23   set of minutes?



          24             Hearing none, all those in favor of approving the



          25   minutes for the September -- I'm sorry -- November 29th
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           1   special meeting please say "Aye."



           2                       (Aye.)



           3                  CHAIR DREW:  Opposed?



           4             The minutes are approved.



           5             Okay.  Moving on in our agenda to the facility



           6   updates.  Mr. Melbardis with Kittitas Valley Wind Project,



           7   please go ahead.



           8                  SPEAKER MELBARDIS:  Good afternoon, Chair



           9   Drew, EFSEC council and staff.  For the record, this is Eric



          10   Melbardis.  I think you asked us to spell that this time.



          11   M-E-L --



          12                  CHAIR DREW:  Mr. Melbardis, we have you on



          13   the list that we will send to the court reporter, so yes.



          14                  SPEAKER MELBARDIS:  Okay.  So yes, I am with



          15   EDP Renewables for the Kittitas Valley Wind Power Project,



          16   and I have nothing non-routine to report for the period.



          17                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          18             Moving on to Wild Horse Wind Power Facility,



          19   Ms. Galbraith.



          20                  SPEAKER GALBRAITH:  Thank you, Chair Drew,



          21   council members and staff.  This is Jennifer Galbraith with



          22   Puget Sound Energy, representing the Wild Horse Wind



          23   Facility, and I have nothing non-routine to report for the



          24   month of November or December.



          25                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.
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           1             Grays Harbor Energy Facility, Mr. Sherin.



           2                  SPEAKER SHERIN:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,



           3   council members, staff.  This is Chris Sherin, the land



           4   manager at Grays Harbor Energy Center.



           5             For the month of November, I have no non-routine



           6   items to report.  I will note though that we weren't (ph.)



           7   limited to one-by-one operation for two weeks, due to



           8   transmission line maintenance on the Paul Olympia Satsop sub



           9   or transmission line.



          10             In the month of November, I have no non-routine



          11   items to report.



          12                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          13             For Chehalis Generation Facility.



          14                  SPEAKER ADAMS:  Yeah.  Good afternoon, Chair



          15   Drew, EFSEC council and staff.  This is Mike Adams, plant



          16   manager at the Chehalis Generation Facility.  For the month



          17   of November, I have no non-routine items to report.



          18                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          19             Columbia Generating Station.



          20                  SPEAKER SCHMIDT:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,



          21   council members and staff.  For the record, this is Marshall



          22   Schmidt reporting for Columbia Generating Station.



          23             For the month of November, I only have one update,



          24   and that is on the 17th, Energy Northwest received approval



          25   from EFSEC for the Columbia Generating Station annual air
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           1   emission source registration, and that's for 2020 and 2021.



           2             For December, the only item I have to update is



           3   that on the 1st of the month, Energy Northwest received the



           4   inspection report for our 2022 Columbia Generating Station



           5   synthetic minor air inspection that was conducted back in



           6   October.  There were no issues or findings identified in



           7   that letter.



           8             That is all that I have to update.



           9                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          10             For the Columbia Solar Projects, Mr. Hurd.



          11                  SPEAKER HURD:  Good afternoon, Chair Drew,



          12   council members and EFSEC staff.  This is Owen Hurd



          13   reporting for the Columbia Solar Projects.  For the month of



          14   November, total generation of 385 megawatt hours for the



          15   Penstemon Project, 356 megawatt hours for the Camas Project



          16   and on the Urtica Project for troubleshooting inverters and



          17   substantial completion as expected in late January.



          18             Thank you.



          19                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          20             Yes?



          21                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Sorry, Chair Drew.  If I



          22   could, I wanted to step back just a bit.  We do have a line



          23   item on the agenda for an update for the counsel on the



          24   Columbia Generating Station NPDES permit provided by



          25   Ms. Moon.
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           1                  CHAIR DREW:  And that was, for the record,



           2   Ms. Hafkemeyer.



           3             And I was following the sheets in my packet and



           4   not the agenda, so my apologies there.



           5             Ms. Moon, this is the NPDES permit update.  Go



           6   ahead, Ms. Moon.



           7                  SPEAKER MOON:  Thank you.



           8             Good afternoon Council Chair Drew and council



           9   members.  For the record, this is Amy Moon, EFSEC staff



          10   member providing an update on the National Pollutant



          11   Discharge Elimination System, or NPDES permit, at the



          12   Columbia Generating Station.



          13             The last time there was action taken by the



          14   council on the NPDES permit was in 2019, and the council



          15   members have changed quite a bit since then.  And I want to



          16   provide you and the public with a brief summary of the NPDES



          17   permit and permit program.



          18             Energy Northwest operates a nuclear-fueled steam



          19   electric power generation plant known as the Columbia



          20   Generating Station, that discharges to the Columbia River.



          21   EFSEC regulates the discharge to the Columbia River under



          22   the NPDES permit program.



          23             This regulatory authority warrants a brief



          24   explanation, beginning with the Clean Water Act.  The



          25   federal Clean Water Act, first enacted in 1972, established
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           1   water quality goals for the navigable surface waters of the



           2   United States.  One mechanism for achieving the goals of the



           3   Clean Water Act is the NPDES, administered by the Federal



           4   Environmental Protection Agency or EPA.



           5             The EPA authorized the State of Washington to



           6   manage the NPDES permit program in our state.  The



           7   Washington State Legislature accepted the delegation and



           8   assigned the power and duty for conducting NPDES permitting



           9   and enforcement to EFSEC for facilities under EFSEC



          10   authority.



          11             EFSEC worked with the Washington Department of



          12   Ecology and issued the current NPDES permit on



          13   September 30th of 2014.  This permit was modified twice, on



          14   February 8th of 2016 and again on March 19th of 2019.



          15             Although the NPDES was issued with an



          16   October 31st, 2019, expiration date, EFSEC administratively



          17   extended the permit on September 13th, 2019, after accepting



          18   the NPDES renewal application on August 6th, 2019, in



          19   accordance with the Washington State Administrative



          20   Procedure Act, which is the Revised Code of Washington



          21   34.05.422(3) and the Washington Administrative Code



          22   463-76-061(4).



          23             Today I want to let you know that EFSEC has been



          24   working with Ecology on the new NPDES permit and expects to



          25   have the draft permit and fact sheet ready for presentation
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           1   to the council in February.



           2             Does the council have any questions?



           3                  CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions from



           4   council members?



           5             No.  Thank you.



           6             Next item in the next order on our agenda is Horse



           7   Heaven Wind Farm.  Ms. Moon.



           8                  SPEAKER MOON:  Thank you, Council, Chair Drew



           9   and council members.  Again, for the record, this is Amy



          10   Moon, EFSEC staff member, providing a draft environmental



          11   impact statement or draft EIS update on the Horse Heaven



          12   Wind Project.



          13             The draft EIS was issued December 19th, 2022, for



          14   a 45-day comment period ending February 1st of 2023.  Copies



          15   of the draft EIS are posted for public review on the EFSEC



          16   public website, and electronic copies were distributed to



          17   public libraries near the Horse Heaven Wind Project -- or



          18   proposed project area, as well as to the Washington State



          19   Library in Olympia.  Public comments may be submitted to the



          20   EFSEC comment database or by US mail to the EFSEC mailing



          21   address.



          22             After the comment period closes, EFSEC will review



          23   the comments received to determine if additional information



          24   gathering and analysis should be done to improve the



          25   environmental analysis for the final EIS.
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           1             Does the council have any questions?



           2                  CHAIR DREW:  Any questions from council



           3   members?



           4                  SPEAKER BREWSTER:  Just a question of how



           5   long you expect it to take to go through the comments.



           6                  SPEAKER MOON:  Since we're still in the



           7   comment period and we don't know how many comments or the



           8   content of those comments, that's hard to answer.



           9             We do have a contractor that will be working on



          10   sorting the comments and tabulating and figuring out what



          11   topics we have and whether or not additional



          12   information-gathering will need to be done and what



          13   additional analysis will have to occur.



          14             Does that answer your question it's a vague



          15   answer, but...(pause).



          16                  SPEAKER BREWSTER:  I expect so.



          17                  SPEAKER MOON:  Okay.  Thank you.



          18                  CHAIR DREW:  Any other questions?



          19             Okay.  Thank you.



          20             Moving on to the Goose Prairie Solar Project,



          21   project updates.  Ms. Randolph.



          22                  SPEAKER RANDOLPH:  Good afternoon, Chair



          23   Drew, council members and staff.  For the record, this is



          24   Sara Randolph, the site specialist for the Goose Prairie



          25   Facility.
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           1             EFSEC staff received a draft of the initial site



           2   restoration plan, or ISRP, from the certificate holder,



           3   which is available to you in your packet.  Staff have



           4   reviewed the draft in consultation with our independent



           5   contractor and our attorney general and determined that the



           6   plan complies with the facility site certification



           7   agreement, or SCA, an agreement and regulation, excuse me,



           8   with Washington Administrative Code or WAC 463-72.



           9             The ISRP is required to be approved by the



          10   council, per WAC 463-72-030.  At this time, staff are



          11   recommending that the council vote to approve the ISRP as



          12   provided.



          13             EFSEC staff received two comments in the ISRP.



          14   Neither comment warranted a change in the draft ISRP as we



          15   received it.



          16             Are there any questions?



          17                  CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions for



          18   staff?



          19             Hearing none, I would ask the council:  Seeing and



          20   having a chance to review the ISRP or initial site



          21   restoration plan, is there a motion to approve that plan?



          22                  SPEAKER YOUNG:  Lenny Young, so move.



          23                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          24             Second?



          25                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Kate Kelly, second.
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           1                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



           2             Are there any comments?



           3             The plan seems to me to be in good order and



           4   certainly covers the -- what is required both in our rules



           5   and in the site certification agreement, so I commend it to



           6   you.



           7             All those in favor of approving Goose Prairie



           8   Solar Initial Site Restoration Plan, please say "Aye."



           9                       (Aye.)



          10                  CHAIR DREW:  All those opposed?



          11             The plan is approved.  Thank you.



          12             Badger Mountain Project update.  Ms. Hafkemeyer.



          13                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you, Chair Drew.



          14   Good afternoon, council.



          15             Staff have been working with our contractor in the



          16   initial stages of drafting the environmental impact



          17   statement.  On December 27th, EFSEC staff sent a second data



          18   request to the applicant in support of the draft EIS.  Staff



          19   have also received additional studies from the applicant as



          20   coordinated with EFSEC staff and contracted agencies of



          21   expertise.



          22             Are there any questions?



          23                  CHAIR DREW:  Are there -- so this is the



          24   preparation of the draft EIS phase that we are in now for



          25   Badger Mountain.  Correct?
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           1                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Correct.  EFSEC staff



           2   are working with our contractor to draft the sections of the



           3   EIS, which will then be compiled for issuance later this



           4   year.



           5                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



           6             Any other questions?  Okay.  Thank you.



           7             Whistling Ridge.  Ms. Hafkemeyer.



           8                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you, Chair Drew.



           9   Again, this is Amy Hafkemeyer, for the record.



          10             EFSEC staff are waiting for the certificate holder



          11   to submit the remaining materials for the FCA amendment



          12   request.  There are no further updates at this time.



          13                  CHAIR DREW:  On to the next project, High Top



          14   and Ostrea.  Ms. Hafkemeyer.



          15                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you.  I'd like to



          16   start by thanking the council for their attendance at the



          17   conditional use criteria meeting last Wednesday.  At that



          18   meeting there were four speakers.  EFSEC also received four



          19   written comments, one of which was received verbally, as



          20   well, and was one of the four commenters who spoke.



          21             These comments included recommendations on fire



          22   risk mitigation, recommendation on use of local labor, and



          23   concerns about use of agricultural land and environmental



          24   impacts and input on the EFSEC review process for this



          25   project.
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           1             I'd like to take a moment to review the timeline



           2   of this project to date, highlighting the opportunities that



           3   we have had so far for public comment.



           4             On April 7th, EFSEC received the application for



           5   site certification RASC, as well as the letter requesting



           6   expedited process.



           7             On June 1st, EFSEC held the initial public



           8   informational meeting to receive public comment, followed by



           9   the land use consistency hearing to receive testimony from



          10   the public.  Both of these meetings were held virtually.



          11             On July 19th, at the regularly scheduled council



          12   meeting, the council reviewed and approved an extension of



          13   the expedited process and determination by ten weeks.



          14             On October 18th, the council voted to approve



          15   Order 884 determining the proposal to be consistent with



          16   local land use ordinances in place at the time of



          17   application.  Public comment was taken during the meeting on



          18   this council action.



          19             On October 1st, EFSEC issued a SEPA threshold



          20   determination of mitigated determination of



          21   non-significance, or MDNS, followed by a 14-day public



          22   comment period.



          23             On October 28, EFSEC issued the revised MDNS.



          24             On November 2nd, the council went on a site tour



          25   and viewed the High Top and Ostrea sites from a nearby

�



                                                                          21







           1   vantage point at which the public was welcome to attend.



           2             With the land use consistency determination made



           3   by Order 884 and the revised MDNS issued on October 28th,



           4   the council voted to approve the applicant's expedited



           5   request by Order 885 on November 15th.  Council action was



           6   open for public comment ahead of the November council



           7   meeting.



           8             On November 29th, the council reviewed and



           9   approved the request to extend the timeline for the



          10   recommendation to February 22nd.  This action was open for



          11   public comment ahead of the council meeting.



          12             And then finally, last week, EFSEC held a



          13   conditional use criteria meeting to receive public comment



          14   on conditions related to the conditional use criteria as



          15   identified in the Yakima County Code that could then be



          16   included in a site certification agreement draft.



          17             Are there any questions from the council on the



          18   project activity to date?



          19                  CHAIR DREW:  Are there any questions about



          20   the timeline and the actions the council has taken or public



          21   comment opportunities?  Go ahead.



          22                  UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Thank you.



          23             In consideration of our review of the application,



          24   the issued MDNS, the determination of land use consistency



          25   and the granting of expedited process, staff would like to

�



                                                                          22







           1   recommend that the council direct staff to prepare an order



           2   with the recommendation of approval, a draft site



           3   certification agreement and associated documents to be



           4   reviewed and voted on at the February 15th council meeting.



           5                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  Are there any



           6   questions from council members?



           7             Is there a motion to direct the staff to draft an



           8   order recommending approval of the project for the February



           9   meeting?



          10                  SPEAKER LEVITT:  Eli Levitt, motion to direct



          11   the staff.



          12                  CHAIR DREW:  Second?



          13                  SPEAKER BREWSTER:  Stacey Brewster, second.



          14                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          15             Are there any questions or comments on this



          16   motion?



          17             A lot of work has gone into reviewing the



          18   application, working with agencies who have had concerns on



          19   the project, that have been actually worked through in terms



          20   of the mitigation.  That has -- is all part of our package



          21   as we go forward, and I commend this project to you and



          22   encourage a yes vote.



          23             I will ask for a roll call vote.



          24             Clerk, will you call -- Ms. Grantham, will you



          25   call the roll for the EFSEC council, which is also the High
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           1   Top and Ostrea council.



           2                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Yes.  No problem.



           3             Chair Drew.



           4                  CHAIR DREW:  Aye.



           5                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Department of Commerce,



           6   Kate Kelly.



           7                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Aye.



           8                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Department of Fish and



           9   Wildlife.



          10                  SPEAKER LIVINGSTON:  Aye.



          11                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Department of Ecology, Eli



          12   Levitt.



          13                  SPEAKER LEVITT:  Aye.



          14                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Utilities and



          15   Transportation Commission, Stacey Brewster.



          16                  SPEAKER BREWSTER:  Aye.



          17                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Department of Natural



          18   Resources, Lenny Young.



          19                  SPEAKER YOUNG:  Aye.



          20                  CHAIR DREW:  The motion is approved.



          21             I will point out to the public that the order will



          22   be drafted before the next council meeting, and you will



          23   have time to send in your comments to us about that draft



          24   order.  So that's the next step.  We haven't finalized the



          25   order, so the opportunity will be to comment on the proposed
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           1   order before the next meeting.  Thank you all.



           2             Moving on to the next item on our agenda, which is



           3   the Wautoma Solar Project update, Mr. Caputo.



           4                  SPEAKER CAPUTO:  Thank you, Chair Drew and



           5   council members.  For the record, my name is Lance Caputo.



           6   I'm the EFSEC staff assigned to the Wautoma Project.



           7             The state briefly -- we are in the stage of the



           8   process where we thoroughly review the application and then



           9   request supplemental data.



          10             In October of 2022, EFSEC sent the applicant a



          11   request for additional information.  We received the



          12   applicant's response to Data Request No. 1 in mid November.



          13             On the 27th of December, a second request for



          14   additional information was sent.  However, due to the



          15   holiday season, the applicant requested a 45-day period to



          16   respond.  We anticipate a reply by 15th of January 2023, and



          17   in the meantime, we are continuing to work with the



          18   applicant and our contractors on this project.



          19                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          20             So those data requests are to help with the staff



          21   completion of the determination of significance for the



          22   project.  Is that correct?



          23                  SPEAKER CAPUTO:  Correct.  They fill in



          24   missing gaps in the application so that we can make a proper



          25   SEPA determination.
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           1                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



           2             So the next step will be the SEPA determination,



           3   which is made by Sonia Bumpus, our EFSEC director, and then



           4   from there that information will come back to the council.



           5                  SPEAKER CAPUTO:  Correct.



           6                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



           7             Any questions?  And we also had a site visit of



           8   Wautoma as well, so I think that's helpful for us as we



           9   consider that project.



          10             Moving on to Hop Hill Solar, this is a new



          11   application that has just recently come to EFSEC.



          12             Ms. Hafkemeyer.



          13                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you.  For the



          14   record, this is Amy Hafkemeyer.



          15             On December 22nd, EFSEC staff received the



          16   application for the proposed Hop Hill Solar Facility.  The



          17   applicant is here today to give a brief introduction to the



          18   project, more detail on which will be provided at the public



          19   informational meeting.



          20             Staff are currently working to schedule this



          21   meeting and will update the council and the public as



          22   details become available.



          23             Are there any questions?



          24                  CHAIR DREW:  Any questions?



          25             Go ahead.
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           1                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Hearing none, I will



           2   hand the floor over to the applicant to introduce themselves



           3   to the council.



           4                  SPEAKER TYSON:  Thank you, Chair Drew,



           5   council members and staff.  So excited to come here and talk



           6   a little bit about the Hop Hill Project, but real quickly,



           7   just as a matter of introductions, my name's Chris



           8   Wissel-Tyson.  I lead development here for BrightNight in



           9   the Pacific Northwest.  I'm based just north of Seattle, and



          10   I'll let Ron introduce himself.



          11                  CHAIR DREW:  If you can spell your name



          12   for --



          13                  SPEAKER TYSON:  Sorry about that.



          14                  CHAIR DREW:   -- the court reporter.



          15                  SPEAKER TYSON:  C-H-R-I-S-T-O-P-H-E-R.  And I



          16   have a hyphenated last name, W-I-S-S-E-L dash T-Y-S-O-N.



          17                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.



          18                  SPEAKER KIECANA:  And I'm Ron Kiecana,



          19   K-I-E-C-A-N-A.  I'm the chief development officer with



          20   BrightNight Power.  And thank you, Chair Drew and EFSEC



          21   staff for the opportunity to introduce BrightNight and the



          22   Hop Hill Project today.



          23                  SPEAKER TYSON:  We'll move quickly to the



          24   next slide and just a little background behind who we are



          25   and the company BrightNight.
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           1             We're an independent power producer.  I'd say



           2   young in current formation, we were formed in 2018, but I'd



           3   say old in pedigree and experience amongst the team.  We are



           4   the next iteration of a company that was started by Martin



           5   Hermann, called 8minutenergy.  8minute, from around 2010 to



           6   2018, was a large private solar developer in the United



           7   States and really changed the way we looked at large



           8   utility-scale solar projects.  He built projects in Southern



           9   California and Nevada and Arizona that set price records at



          10   the time and really showed that large solar projects can be



          11   competitive with fossil fuel projects.



          12             But around 2017-2018, he started to come to the



          13   realization that if we're going to truly decarbonize the



          14   grid, we're going to have to move from as available



          15   renewable technology, when wind blows or when it's sunny or



          16   when the hydro's running with a large runoff in the spring,



          17   to something that's more dispatchable, like a traditional



          18   power plant.  And that's why he formed BrightNight, and we



          19   are a purpose-built team for that goal.



          20             I'll get a little bit into that next slide, but



          21   just real quick, we have a US portfolio of around 21



          22   gigawatts, two gigawatts in the Asia Pacific.  We have two



          23   financial partners, CPPIB, the Canadian pension fund, is a



          24   partner in all of our western projects, and we also have



          25   GIP, Global Infrastructure Partners, which is one of the
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           1   largest infrastructure funds in the world, and they support



           2   our US portfolio.



           3             One point of clarification, we are an IDP.  We



           4   intend to develop, build and own these projects for up to 40



           5   to 50 years.  We are not trying to sell the project before



           6   or right after construction.  That's not how we're built.



           7   So I think it does change, a little bit, how we do business



           8   as a company.  Stakeholders, neighbor relationships, just



           9   the design of the plants and thinking about our rate payers



          10   and customers, us, as power buyers, is very important to us



          11   when we have that kind of -- you want to say something?



          12             I was just going to check on the next part here.



          13   And just moving along, we're now a team of about 110 people,



          14   with operations here in the US, as well as over in Asia



          15   Pacific.  85 people are located here in the US, and we have



          16   a strong team here in the Northwest.  They're located here;



          17   six people reside here in the Northwest.  We're a big



          18   believer in being very close to the customers and to the



          19   markets which we aspire to be a part of in the future.



          20             If we can move on to the next slide here, I just



          21   want to touch on -- this is something that is very different



          22   and is part of BrightNight.  And this is a proprietary



          23   software platform that we have developed here at



          24   BrightNight, and this supports our focus on structuring



          25   clean power products for our customer.

�



                                                                          29







           1             And so as Chris mentioned, there is a difference



           2   between clean energy and clean power.  You're going to get



           3   clean energy when the sun is shining, wind is blowing.  We



           4   focus on clean power and providing that power when the



           5   customer really values it and needs it most.  And it can



           6   most be beneficial from an operations perspective for the



           7   customer and for the transmission system.



           8             So our PowerAlpha platform, very quickly, is able



           9   to very quickly analyze immense amounts of data across



          10   intermittent resources and identify where the gaps are.  So



          11   we look for opportunities to combine intermittent resources



          12   to provide structured, more valuable clean power products to



          13   customers.



          14             Sometimes this does involve using energy storage.



          15   Other times it may involve just layering in more



          16   intermittent energy, such as wind, solar, possibly even



          17   hydro.  So again, very powerful tool core to BrightNight and



          18   a big part of what we do here as a team here in the US.



          19                  SPEAKER TYSON:  Two slides, I'll talk a



          20   little bit about the Hop Hill Energy Project.  This is a PVS



          21   500-megawatt project in Benton County, Washington, Central



          22   Washington, around 5,000 acres within the fence line.  And



          23   we actually have three different potential points of



          24   interconnect and interconnect applications with the EPA.



          25             We have four main goals with the Hop Hill Project.
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           1   One is to provide low-cost and reliable energy in an area



           2   that compliments already-existing resources.  And so that's



           3   the Columbia River dams and what's really called the



           4   Northwest hub, as well as other resources, such as nuclear,



           5   to help meet growing needs in the region as well as the



           6   state.



           7             2.  We wanted to avoid expensive and lengthy



           8   infrastructure projects.  I'm sure you guys know, but we are



           9   extremely constrained here in Washington and Oregon as well,



          10   mostly around the BPA system.  There's just no transmission



          11   left to bring a lot of new projects online to meet our



          12   renewable goals.



          13             If you put, for example, a project maybe closer to



          14   Spokane, Eastern Washington, you can trigger upgrades on the



          15   east and west side of Washington, as well as Portland and



          16   Eastern Oregon.  And those upgrades can take 10 to 15 years,



          17   and it's a big impact on everyone that's experiencing those



          18   upgrades.



          19             So we looked across Washington's BPA system and



          20   really tried to find a location where we can inject a large



          21   amount of renewable power without triggering those long



          22   upgrades, which allows us to come online in two to three



          23   years and deliver to customers and help meet renewable goals



          24   and not trigger all these projects across multiple states.



          25             No. 3, minimizing natural resource impacts while
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           1   maximizing community benefits.  So these projects bring a



           2   lot of tax revenue to communities, but we heard, kind of,



           3   three main concerns, and we worked with -- we've been



           4   talking to Benton County over two-and-a-half years.  I mean,



           5   one is visual, and the other one is impact to productive



           6   land, and a third is pristine habitat, impact to its



           7   pristine habitat.



           8             So really tried to find a site that was a happy



           9   medium between all these impacts.  We wanted to avoid any



          10   irrigated land.  We also wanted to avoid those higher value



          11   habitat areas and wanted to seat the project in a location



          12   in which it was shielded from the rest of the community as



          13   much as we could.  That's how we picked this site just south



          14   of Rattlesnake Hill, and it's on low-productivity grazing



          15   land.



          16             No. 4.  One thing that's very important to us is



          17   co-use, and we'll talk about this in two slides.  But we



          18   wanted to maintain the productive nature of the land.  Even



          19   though this is low productivity grazing land, we really



          20   think that we can work in concert with traditional



          21   agricultural practices.



          22             So for this site we are doing sheep grazing across



          23   the entire project, and it will probably be the largest



          24   project, we think, in the Pacific Northwest to pursue this



          25   type of agrivoltaics.
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           1             I'll talk about that.  And if we can switch, go



           2   one more slide.



           3             Just real quick, on a little bit more about the



           4   micrositing of the project.  You guys understand, I think,



           5   why we came to this area.  And if you look on the south or



           6   bottom of your screen there, you can see the white areas are



           7   solar panels, so there's a lot of design considerations once



           8   we narrowed into this site.  One was natural resources.



           9             We actually talk a lot to WDFW.  One, about



          10   habitat that borders, I'd say, to the north of the site, of



          11   actual species that they were concerned about.  In this



          12   case, it was the Ferruginous Hawk, and so we actually moved



          13   all our panels from the west to the east to try to avoid the



          14   Ferruginous Hawk's prey habitat in that area.



          15             Culture and archaeological, we did transect



          16   surveys and we've hired, we think, very good local



          17   consultants that understand our stakeholders and really



          18   helped in that stakeholder outreach.



          19             Water resources, there is some water in the draws



          20   between the sites, but we'll really be able to avoid those



          21   impacts through our crossings.



          22             Visual impact, which I already talked about a



          23   little bit, and then topography and existing agricultural



          24   operations.



          25             So with all these design considerations or
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           1   constraints, we came up with this layout which will be



           2   included in our permit.



           3             And I'll move to the next slide.  I know we don't



           4   have a lot of time.



           5             This is one thing I really wanted to talk about.



           6   I mean, because we really think that the industry -- this is



           7   where the industry needs to go, and it really can be a part



           8   of agriculture.  So we're really focused on agrivoltaics in



           9   the company.  Our owner, Martin, has two regenerative farms.



          10   It's a big focus of ours, and we think this is the way we're



          11   going to have to do business and really work in a symbiotic



          12   relationship in the future.



          13             There's an agricultural Oregon State professor



          14   that said:  Solar panels are farm equipment and the sun is a



          15   farm resource.



          16             We like that.  We think that's a good goal and



          17   maybe where we can move, but we do think we already



          18   complement existing traditional ag practices.  And so for



          19   this site, we're pursuing sheep grazing.  And there's really



          20   good research, locally, about the advantages of doing that.



          21             There's a study, specifically, on sheep grazing,



          22   same type of landscape and low-productivity grazing land.



          23   They see up to about a 300 percent improvement in water



          24   conservation just by the shading.  By doing that shading you



          25   get twice the plant growth.  And it's because on the eastern

�



                                                                          34







           1   side of the Cascades here, we are water limited, not sun or



           2   photon limited.  And what does that equal?  Actually, about



           3   a ten percent increase in care and capacity of sheep on the



           4   site.



           5             So not only does this work well with an existing



           6   ag practice, but actually improves it.  So we really think



           7   it's a great model going forward.



           8             We're also very excited; this was actually -- this



           9   property was an historic sheep operation since the landowner



          10   originally homesteaded the land and expanded it, they raised



          11   sheep for years and ran them up into the mountains.  There



          12   was, I'd say, a little bit of a crash in the wool market a



          13   couple decades ago, and now trends are changing again and



          14   it's starting to make more sense.



          15             So we're really excited to bring this sheep



          16   operation back to the property.  And he will actually own



          17   and run this, so it's quite exciting.



          18             And lastly, we want to support agrivoltaics in the



          19   future.  I mean, this isn't just us in this project.  We're



          20   committed to really supporting the industry and making sure



          21   that we're doing business in a way that works well with our



          22   local communities.



          23             So we're actually funding a research project



          24   through a local university.  We'll announce it soon, but



          25   it's really on the impact of co-use on this project and
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           1   actually nutrient transport.  Without getting into details,



           2   sheep like to sit under the panels, and so they do certain



           3   things there.  So a lot of nutrients is concentrated under



           4   those panels, and there's a lot of interest on how that



           5   nutrient flows throughout the property.



           6             That's about it.  We do have a quick video, if we



           7   do have time, about the project as well.



           8                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  I just wanted to add one more



           9   thing.  We do have a power sale commitment in place for 280



          10   megawatts of the 500 megawatts that's being shown here in



          11   the application, and that power will -- clean energy power



          12   will be used for future Washington State clean power



          13   requirements.



          14                       (Video being played.  No audio)



          15                  CHAIR DREW:  Can we pause for a minute?  I'm



          16   seeing messages that there is not audio for those who are



          17   not in this room.



          18                  SPEAKER GRANTHAM:  Chair Drew, we may need to



          19   make the video available afterwards.  I believe there may be



          20   an issue with playing video through Teams, where sound



          21   doesn't come through.



          22                  CHAIR DREW:  We apologize to everyone who is



          23   participating in this meeting.  There is a glitch that we



          24   cannot play the audio from the video.  So I think what I



          25   will do is pause here and ask council members:  Is that the
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           1   end of your presentation?



           2             And we'll watch it afterwards, and we'll ask



           3   others, also, to watch it afterwards, after we conclude our



           4   meeting today, so we don't spend the time looking at a video



           5   that no one else can see -- I mean, hear.



           6             So are there questions from council members?  Go



           7   ahead, Ms. Kelly.



           8                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Thank you, Chair Drew.



           9             This is Kate Kelly from the Department of



          10   Commerce.  I just have a question for the proponents.  I



          11   thought I saw on some of the materials that this was going



          12   to be -- that 5,000 acres was going to be fenced in.  Is



          13   that correct?



          14                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  Yes, that is correct.



          15                  SPEAKER KELLY:  So that's a lot -- a lot of



          16   fence.  Is it -- what's the implications on wildlife?



          17                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  Yeah.  I mean, so we were



          18   working on a number of things I kind of talked about on the



          19   constraint side, you know.  We were trying to move away from



          20   where we thought there was valuable prey habitat and start



          21   trying to avoid impacts on wildlife.



          22             Currently, the site is grazed by couple hundred



          23   cattle.  So it's pretty well-impacted.  But there is



          24   wildlife, I'd say especially on the northern edge.  So we



          25   tried to pull the site down from that and as well as looked
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           1   at -- a lot of our other projects, we looked at migration



           2   corridors and trying not to create a bottleneck in our



           3   projects.



           4             But we also have this, you know, competing



           5   operation here with sheep, and we do need to protect them



           6   from predation.  So we are going to work with the landowner



           7   through this whole process to really understand where we



           8   need fencing and not.



           9             We think there is some more fingers and, kind of,



          10   migration pathways we can add to the site, but really, our



          11   main goal was to try to avoid where we surveilled wildlife



          12   or knew there was historic presence of wildlife or their



          13   prey habitat.  So we tried to move away from that, get more



          14   into those grazing areas.



          15                  SPEAKER KELLY:  And so just to come from --



          16   the sheep would graze there year-round and not go up into



          17   the hills.



          18                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  Yes.  So they would graze the



          19   project year-round, mostly -- I mean, the grazing season is



          20   spring, summer and then a little bit of fall, and then we



          21   will have to supplement their feed in the winter.



          22                  SPEAKER KELLY:  Thank you.



          23                  CHAIR DREW:  And with some of our projects to



          24   follow on that theme, the fencing is raised a little bit to



          25   allow for the smaller critters.
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           1                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  Absolutely.  In Idaho we've



           2   been working with BLM on some sage grouse-friendly fencing,



           3   essentially allow them -- that's kind of a standard we



           4   wanted for these projects.



           5             We are faced with an interesting situation here,



           6   where there are coyotes and we have sheep.  So we're working



           7   with the landowner on, you know, What does that look like?



           8   Can we have wildlife-friendly fencing?  Can we move that



           9   fencing?  So that is something we are still working on the



          10   project.  But as far as the application, we kind of want to



          11   take the worst-case scenario and say, we're putting this



          12   fencing down to the ground, and then we're going to work and



          13   see what we can do.



          14                  CHAIR DREW:  Through the comments and issues



          15   that might arise and work with that.



          16                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  Yep.



          17                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  Are there additional



          18   questions from council members?



          19             I wondered if you could share with us who is the



          20   power off-taker.



          21                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  Yeah, I'm sorry.  That's not



          22   public yet.



          23                  CHAIR DREW:  Okay.



          24                  BRIGHTNIGHT:  It will be sometime here in



          25   2023.
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           1                  CHAIR DREW:  Okay.  Appreciate that.



           2   Understand.



           3             Thank you for your presentation.  We look forward



           4   to viewing the video and also to hearing more about this



           5   project as we review your application.



           6             Moving into our good of the order and the next



           7   item before us is the third quarter cost allocation.



           8             Ms. Bumpus.



           9                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Chair Drew, Ms. Bumpus



          10   asked that I cover the cost allocation for the council



          11   meeting this afternoon.



          12                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  I was actually



          13   reading my agenda.  Go ahead, Ms. Hafkemeyer.



          14                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you.



          15             So on the screen you'll see the cost allocation



          16   for third quarter, which is January 1st through March 30th,



          17   2023, and the allocation is as follows:



          18             Kittitas Wind Valley -- Kittitas Valley Wind Power



          19   project, four percent.



          20             Wild Horse Wind, four percent.



          21             Columbia Generating Station, 21 percent.



          22             Columbia Solar, four percent.



          23             WNP-1, three percent.



          24             Whistling Ridge Energy, three percent.



          25             Grays Harbor 1 and 2, eight percent.
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           1             Chehalis Generation Facility, seven percent.



           2             Desert Claim Wind, three percent.



           3             Goose Prairie Solar, four percent.



           4             Horse Heaven Wind, 15 percent.



           5             Badger Mountain Solar, six percent.



           6             Cypress Creek Renewables, which is the High Top



           7   and Ostrea Project, six percent.



           8             Wautoma Solar, six percent.



           9             Hop Hill, six percent.



          10             Are there any questions?



          11                  CHAIR DREW:  Any questions?



          12             Thank you for that report.  For the good of the



          13   order, we do have some new staff members to introduce to the



          14   council.  Ms. Hafkemeyer.



          15                  SPEAKER HAFKEMEYER:  Thank you, Chair Drew.



          16             We do have a new addition to the EFSEC staff.  A



          17   knew siting specialist joined us on January 3rd.  Joanne



          18   Snarski is joining us as a siting specialist, and she will



          19   be taking the lead on the Badger Mountain Project.



          20                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  And we also have



          21   Ms. Osta Davis with us, if you would like to introduce



          22   yourself and tell about your role to the council.



          23                  SPEAKER DAVIS:  Thank you, Chair Drew and



          24   members of the council.  My name is Osta Davis, and I'm



          25   EFSEC's new legislative and policy manager.  I will be
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           1   keeping track of all of the bills that go through the



           2   legislature that affect EFSEC and make sure that EFSEC's



           3   perspective is considered in the legislative process.



           4             I wanted to introduce myself and offer up myself



           5   as a resource to the council.  If you do have any questions



           6   about specific legislation or the legislative process, feel



           7   free to reach out, and I'm happy to provide an update there.



           8   Thanks.



           9                  CHAIR DREW:  Thank you.  And welcome, to both



          10   Osta and to Joanna.



          11             With that, there's no further business to come



          12   before us, and the meeting is adjourned.



          13                       (Meeting concluded 2:31 p.m.)
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